FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

Member of Wyoming Solid Waste and Recycling Association (WSWRA) P.O. Box 1400
Lander, WY 82520
telephone 307.332.7040

MEETING AGENDA fax 307.332.5013
trashmatters.org
FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REGULAR MEETING
April 19, 2021 -9:30 a.m.

PRELIMINARY ITEMS:

a. Pledge of Allegiance

b. Roll Call: Michael Adams, Steve Baumann, Gary Weisz, Rick Klaproth, Mark Moxley, Rob Dolcater, Rod
Haper, Jennifer Lamb, and Robert Townsend

¢. Declaration of Quorum

d. Approval of Agenda (Discussions and Formal Action)

e. Public Comment / Communication from the Floor

CONSENT ITEMS:
a. Approval of the Meeting Minutes
i. March2021
b. Approval of the Accounts Payable
i. March2021
C. Acceptance of Consultants and Agreement Reports
i. Trihydro Corporation
ii. Burns and McDonnell
iii. Wind River Inter-Tribal Solid Waste — no report submitted
d. Acceptance of Staff Reports
i. Superintendent Report

. BUSINESS ITEMS:

Operational Evaluation and Strategic Planning Project Update — Matt Evans (Discussion)
Scale Facility Project Draft Layout and Detail Review — Burns and McDonnell (Discussions)
Draft Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Operating Budget Review (Discussions)

Shoshoni Landfill Closure — Synthetic Liner Availability Discussions (Discussions)

Used Backhoe Bid Review (Discussions and Formal Action)

® oo oo

. NEW BUSINESS

5. CLOSING ITEMS:

a. Upcoming Meeting(s):
i.  The next Regularly Scheduled Meeting(s): May 17, 2021, at 9:30 a.m.
b. Call for Adjournment

1|Pasge
PLEASE BE SURE TO ADDRESS THE CHAIR PERSON AND TURN OFF CELL PHONES



FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT

Member of Wyoming Solid Waste and Recycling Association (WSWRA) P.O. Box 1400

Lander, WY 82520

telephone 307.332.7040

fax 307.332.5013

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT trashmatters.org
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting

March 15, 2021

1. PRELIMINARY ITEMS:

a. —c. The regular meeting of the Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District Board of Directors was held on
the above date and called to order by CHAIRMAN ADAMS at 9:30am. CHAIRMAN ADAMS then led the Pledge of
Allegiance and declared that there was a quorum of the Board with the following people in attendance:

Board Members: Michael Adams, Rick Klaproth, Gary Weisz, Jennifer Lamb (via Zoom), Robert
Townsend, Rod Haper (via Zoom), Rob Dolcater, Mark Moxiey (via Zoom) and
Steve Baumann

Excused Member(s):  No Excused Members

Unexcused Member(s): No Unexcused Members

Commissioner Liaison: Mike Jones (via Zoom)

Community Liaisons:  Kyle Larson (City of Riverton)

Attorney: Rick Sollars (Western Law & Assoc.)

Staff: Superintendent Andy Frey

Consultant(s): Matt Evans (Burns and McDonnell) via Zoom

Guest(s): Brian Eggleston (City of Riverton), Rene Schell (WY G&F), and Mitch Renteria
(WY G&F)

d. Approval of Agenda

GARY WEISZ made a motion to approve the consent agenda, removing the Superintendent’s Report for discussion.
SECRETARY/TREASURER KLAPROTH seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED

e. Public Comment/Communication from the Floor

CHAIRMAN ADAMS opened the floor to public comment.

Discussions: Brian Eggleston communicated to the Board the timeline associated with the new tub grinder as
having a delivery in April.

2. CONSENT ITEMS:

a. Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes
i. February 2021

b. Approval of Accounts Payable
i. February 2021 Invoices

c. Acceptance of Consultants Reports:
i. Trihydro Corporation — Progress Report
ii. Burnsand McDonnell — Progress Report
iii. Wind River Indian Reservation Inter-Tribal Solid Waste Program ~ No Report Submitted

Page 1 0f 2



d. Acceptance of Staff Reports:
i. Superintendent Report — REMOVED FOR DISCUSSION

Discussions: (1.) Retired staff person, unemployment claim, and impacts on the two different
unemployment models.

ROB DOLCATER made a motion to approve the Superintendents Report. BOB TOWNSEND seconded the motion.
MOTION CARRIED

3. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS:

a. Deer Carcass Waiver Program — Wyoming Game and Fish (Discussions)

Rene Schell reviewed the annual usage of the Deer Carcass Fee Waiver program between February 2020 and
February 2021, representing the second full year of the five-year commitment between the District and WY
Game and Fish to operate the program.

Discussions: (1.) The WY Game and Fish continue to fund the program by $1,500 annually. (2.) Noticeable
increase is use and awareness by WY DOT. (3.) Commercial use continues to represent over 50% of the program
use.

b. Scale Facility Task Order Request — Burns and McDonnell (Discussions and Formal Action)

Superintendent Frey presented the Burns and McDonnell Task Order Request, Authorization No. 32 for the scale
system design for the Lander, Dubois and Sand Draw sites. The work includes scales, roadways, ramps, sewer
and water systems, scale buildings, and traffic control. The task order comes with a not-to-exceed $98,794 cost.

VICE-CHAIRMAN MOXLEY made a motion to approve the Burns and McDonnell Task Order Authorization No. 32 with a
cost not-to-exceed $98,794. SECRETARY/TREASURER KLAPROTH seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED

c. Operational Evaluation and Strategic Planning Project Update — Matt Evans (Discussion)

Matt Evans (Burns and McDonnell) reviewed the three operational alternative models and the financial impacts
associated with each.

Discussions: (1.) Current county mill levy reductions are projected with a decrease of $200,000. (2.)
Approximately 40% of the mili levy monies are tied back to oil and gas.

4. NEW BUSINESS — No new business
5. CALL FOR ADJOURNMENT

STEVE BAUMANN made a motion to adjourn at 10:49AM. BOB TOWNSEND seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED
6. UPCOMING MEETING(S):

a. The Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting: April 19, 2021, at 9:30 a.m.

Respectfully submitted by,

Andrew Frey, P.E. Michael Adams
Superintendent of Operations Board of Director’s Chairman
Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District

Page 2 of 2



2:54 PM Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District

04/14/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2021
_ Mar 31, 21
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
122105 - Petty Cash 300.00
122106 - Transfer Station Cash 400.00
122107 - Scale House Cash 1,600.00
123110 - CB&T Checking 17,711.86
123115 - Edward Jones Investments 3,621,021.23
123120 - Bank of Jackson Hole 151,749.88
123130 - Wyo Star 1,219,867.82
123132 - Wyo Star I 15,317,999.99
123134 - Wyoming Community Bank 972,424.29
Total Checking/Savings 21,303,075.07
Accounts Receivable
133141 - Accounts Rec - User Fees 245,666.45
Total Accounts Receivable 245,666.45
Other Current Assets 18,338.6_8_
Total Current Assets 21,567,080.20
TOTAL ASSETS 21,567,080.20
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 69,227.33
Total Liabilities 69,227.33
Equity
32000 - Unrestricted Net Assets 2,917,557.06
380860 - Cash Reserve 750,000.00
380970 - Closure/Post-Closure Reserve 16,466,876.00
Net Income 1,363,419.81
Total Equity 21,497,852.87
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 21,567,080.20

Page 1



TrihLFlro

CORPORATION

memorandum

To: Andy Frey, P.E., Superintendent, Fremont County SWDD
From: Scott Lee, P.E.

cc: Fremont County SWDD Board

Date: - April 12, 2021

Re: Project Updates for April 19, 2021 Board Meeting

The following information is provided to update the Board of the Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal
District (District) regarding the status of various projects that are being managed by Trihydro Corporation
(Trihydro), and associated activities associated with the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality
(DEQ), Solid and Hazardous Waste Division (SHWD), Water Quality Division (WQD), and Air Quality
Division (AQD). The information provided is generally limited to activity during the previous month.

Sand Draw, Shoshoni, Lander, and Dubois Landfills — 2020-2021 Environmental Activities
and Monitoring (Task Order 10-028 / Trihydro Project 09Y-008-006)

First quarter methane monitoring was conducted at the Dubois, Lander, and Sand Draw Landfills on
March 8, 2021. The semiannual methane and groundwater monitoring event is scheduled to take place
the week of April 12, 2021. We may also be on site for one day the following week.

Technical Assistance (Task Order 10-027 / Trihydro Project 09Y-005-007)

Technical assistance activities during the previous month included:
» A project status report was prepared for the monthly Board meeting.

»  Trihydro will be conducting PFAS sampling at both Lander and Sand Draw during the routine
monitoring events scheduled for the week of April 12,2021. Extra time may be required to collect
these samples alongside the routine samples. However, we do not currently expect to be spending
more days on site than usual.

»  Trihydro has evaluated and prepared a recommended scope and budgeting costs for the 2021-2022
FY. These were submitted to Mr. Andy Frey on April 7, 2021.

Shoshoni Landfill - Shoshoni Landfill Closure (Task Order 10-029 / Trihydro Project 09Y-
004-003)

Trihydro has provided the project manual and drawings for the Shoshoni Landfill Closure project to the
Superintendent for review. The winter storm in Texas has caused turmoil in the geosynthetics supply

1252 Commerce Drive | Laramie, WY 82070 | phone 307/745.7474 | fax 307/745.7729 | www.trihydro.com



v

Andy Frey, FCSWDD
March 8, 2021
Page 2

chain resulting in an increase in material prices. Trihydro discussed the impact material price increases
will have on the project with the Superintendent and WDEQ and has recommended that the project be
delayed until 2022.

Please let us know if you have any questions or need additional information. You can call me on my
direct office line (307-335-3169), send me an email (slee@trihydro.com), or stop by our office at 388
Main Street, Suite C, in Lander.

Attachment:

- None
END OF MEMORANDUM



> BURNS
Memorandum N\.MEDONNELL

Date: April 13,2021

To: Andy Frey, PE, Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
From: Matt Evans, PE

Subject:  Progress Report — April 2021

The following provides an update on work completed by Burns & McDonnell since the last
Progress Report.

Operational Efficiency Study and Strategic Plan

A preferred alternative based on the strategic plan discussions and Board survey results has been
developed and will be presented at the April Board meeting. The presentation will focus on
some of the larger decisions that need to be made, including the long-term operation of the
Riverton Transfer Station and whether or not to build a Lander Transfer Station.

Next steps for the project include:
e Come to a consensus on a preferred mid to long-term plan for District operations.
e Understand changes to operations that may be needed if future revenue falls short from
projections. Rather, which programs and services would need to be modified.
e Complete a draft report of the Operational Efficiency study.

Capacity Audits

Capacity audit reports have been completed and a summary of the reports has been developed to
simplify the District’s financial position and summarize future expenses. Copies of the capacity
audits and the summary report are included in the Board packet.

Technical Engineering Assistance
Burns & McDonnell completed our monthly progress report, invoice and overall project
management related to the administration of the project as part of this task.

Capital Improvement Plan Modeling

The CIP model is being used as the foundation for the financial analysis being completed as part
of the Operational Efficiency and Strategic Planning Study. It will be updated in the second
quarter of this year as the fiscal year 20-21 ends.

Dubois Landfill Cell Excavation Plan Preparation
Burns & McDonnell submitted a C&D landfill excavation bid package to the Superintendent in
January.



Memorandum (continued) \\B#C_B[;%?NNELL

April 13, 2021
Page 2

On-call Surveying
The following surveying was completed:

¢ Interim capacity audit surveys were completed at the Lander Landfill to calculate
airspace utilization over a relatively short period of time (approximately one-month).

e A survey of a tire stockpile at Sand Draw was completed for future calculations of tire
compaction and airspace consumption.

e Survey of the working face area of the Shoshoni Landfill was completed.
Burns & McDonnell appreciates the opportunity to work with the District. If there are any

questions regarding this progress report or work that is being completed, please do not hesitate to
contact me at 612-240-2094 or maevans(@burnsmed.com at your earliest convenience.




Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
Superintendent Report
April 13, 2021

Office/Staff/Board/Inter-Government

Office:
1.

Staff:

Board:

March-April 2021: The District’s accountant and | have been working through the draft
operating budget and have met with the Budget Committee to review. The committee is
ready to make a recommendation to the Board at the April meeting.

The calculated tonnages and cost per ton are as follows (calculated using monthly expenses
and monthly tonnages):

2013 = $140 per ton & 31,472 total tons

2014 = $176 per ton & 27,562 total tons

2015 = 599 per ton & 31,890 total tons

2016 = $103 per ton & 29,659 total tons

2017 = 5102 per ton & 33,483 total tons

2018 = $106 per ton & 36,352 total tons

2019 = $88 per ton & 41,900 total tons

2020 = 589 per ton & 36,200 total tons

2021 = 1% Quarter $100.10 per ton & 7,778 tons

S@ 0 o0 o0 T oo

December 2020: Following the approval of the Safety Incentive Program in April 2015, and
the implementation July 1, 2015, the Riverton Area staff (i.e. Riverton Transfer Station, the
Sand Draw Landfill, the Shoshoni Landfill, and the rural transfer stations) has not had a
single lost-time accident/incident in 5 years and 9 months, and the Lander Area staff (i.e.
Lander Landfill and the Dubois Landfill) had one lost-time accident early on but has now

made it 5 years and 3 months!!
April 2021: The District hired a new scale attendant at the Lander Landfill and a new Waste

Diversion attendant in the Riverton area.

2020 — Below is the current list of Board Committees and Members.
a. Recycling Committee: Jennifer Lamb, Gary Weisz, Bob Townsend, and Mark Moxley.
b. Health Benefit and Wage Committee: Rob Dolcater, Mike Adams, Gary Weisz, and
Rick Klaproth.
¢. Planning Committee: Bob Townsend, Steve Baumann, Jen Lamb, and Gary Weisz.

Budget Committee: Rick Klaproth, Gary Weisz, Rob Dolcater, and Mark Moxley.
WRIR Solid Waste Negotiations Committee: Rod Haper, Steve Baumann, Gary Weisz,
and Mark Moxley.

Page 1 of 3



Inter-Government:

1. State — February 2021: We have reached out to Representative Lloyd Larsen regarding
potential legislation to address a concern with the Wyoming Retirement System that allows
a retiree to draw unemployment benefits back on an entity they have formally retired from.
This concern was recently discussed with the City of Riverton, with them expressing a
concern over the same issue.
a. March 2021: Discussions continue with Representative Larsen on this matter.
An explanation has been provided as the two different payment options
available to employers and consequences associated.

County — No Updates
Municipalities — No Updates

Regulatory/Engineering/Legal/General Contractors
Regulatory:
April 2021: We continue to work through the permit renewals with the WDEQ on the
Lander Transfer Station and the Riverton Transfer Station.
Engineering:
1. Trihydro: (1.) Environmental Monitoring (2.) Groundwater Classifications (3.) Groundwater
Statistical Methodology Review (4.) Shoshoni Landfill Closure Plans and Specifications.

a. April 2021: Trihydro is completing the semi-annual monitoring at our sites,
including sampling and analyzing the PFOS/PFAS on eight wells at Sand Draw
and seven wells at Lander as well as the contaminated groundwater collection
tank.

2. Burns and McDonnell: (1.) Capacity Audits (2.) Surveying (3.) Operational Efficiency
Evaluation and Strategic Planning (4.) Dubois Excavation Plans.

Legal - No Updates

General Contractors — No Updates

Sites/Operations/Equipment:
Sites — February/March 2021: The District completed an interim AUF analysis at the Lander Landfill
to evaluate modifications to the working face size and slope filling. The AUF was 1150 Ibs/yd>.

Operations — February 2021: The District completed the 2020 Annual Report and made the
document available at the 2021 Farm and Ranch Days event in Riverton along with other
information to all those in attendance.

1. February 2021: Following the February Board meeting, the 2020 Annual Report was
submitted to Bob Townsend for review to modify the document into a more reader friendly
version.

a. April 2021: No proposed revisions offered.

Equipment:
1. April 2021: The three new backhoe units were received and the operator training has been
completed.

Page 2 of 3



Miscellaneous/Upcoming Work & Events/Work in Progress:

Miscellaneous — No Updates

Upcoming Work & Events — No Updates

Thank you,

)
f""" Lo E ! L
P i | /,//

Andrew Frey, P.E.
Superintendent of Operations
Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District

Page 3 of 3



Sand Draw Landfill
2019-2020 Capacity Audit



\

Memorandum BURNS \MSDONNELL
Date:  March 26, 2021

To: Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District Board of Directors

From: Matt Evans, Burns & McDonnell

Subject: Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District — Operations Summary

This memorandum presents the following:

Summary of the District’s financial position

Summary of projected expenses and revenues
Long-term closure/post-closure financial responsibilities
Landfill operation metrics

Financial Position

The following table summarizes the key financial considerations for the four District facilities.

Closure /
FY Post Closure
2019- | Projected Closure “Immediate” Post- Post- Future | Future
Site 2020 Closure Cost Closure Closure Closure | Development Development
AUF Year Cost (30-yr) (50-yr) (2021-2041) Fur? q
(Ibslyd?) Balance
Lander 1,098 2028 $2,719,660 | $2,702,000 | $3,005,560 | $3,506,487 | $5,041,346 -
2054
S?:v(\j/ 1,029 (active | $3,522,610 | $5,902,610 | $2,808,610 | $3,276,712 | $1,291,346 -
area)
Shoshoni N/A 2021 $1,319,210 | $217,000 $575,760 | $670,553 $0 -
Dubois 542 2075 $311,970 | $1,323,210 | $813,530 | $949,118 $3,105,208 B
Total - $7,873,450 | $10,144,820 | $7,203,460 | $8,402,870 | $9,437,899 | $ 16,466,876




N\

Memorandum (cont’d) BURNS MSDONNELL

March 26, 2021

Page 2

The 10-year financial projection for the District is presented in the following figure.

US Dollars

District 10-Year Financial Projection

$18,000,000
— 2028
$16,000,000 e Lander LandillClosed. " AN
\\.
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
2023
s 10,000,000 Lander Transfer Statlon Constructlon:2.5M
Lander Landl Site Improvements: 0.7M 2025
Other Const: 100k sanderLeathate Treatmant 2030
Front End Loader: 300k System: 1M 2028 Lander Landfill
Blade: 200k Other Const: 400k s . 700k Closure: 3.1M
5800000 o
7 I . Rofloff Truck: 200k o oo ._.."-.
$6,000,000 ", -
S SRS NERNTU gL PPU0 L LR . S P s P
$4,000,000 -
$2,000,000
$0
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
----- Projected Expenses = = = Projected Revenue e Fund Balance Closure/Post-Ciosure Liability

The information shown on the figure corresponds to the following.

Projected Expenses: Total labor, general operating, equipment purchases, and
construction expenses.

Projected Revenue: Total revenue from fees, mill levy, auto tax and all other forms of
District revenue.

Fund Balance: District bank account that is set aside for landfill closure, post-closure and
other large District construction projects.

Annual Construction and Equipment Expenses: Large construction and equipment
expenses are summarized in boxes corresponding to the year of the expense.

Expenses and Revenues
The projected expenses and revenues for the District are summarized on the following Figure:



Memorandum ccont’d) BURNSQMSDONNELL

March 26, 2021

Page 3
District Projected Revenues and Expenses
2023
Lander Transfer Statlon Construciion: 2 5M
Lander Landflll Site Improvements: 0.7M
Other Const: 100k 2025 La"di‘r’f‘:’“dﬁ“
58,000,000 Front;l;:t?;ggiz 300k Lander Lse:s:‘:t:::'::alment e
Other Const: 400k T
Dozer: 600k
Compactor: 600k Scraper: 700k
$7,000,000 Roll-off Trisck: 200k l;:::ggg:
Other Eq;ﬂp: 100k
$6,000,000
w 55,000,000 e i
o V
© -
e e = — - ———
2 $4,000,000 ____.____._._____.__-—-0—- -
= ¢ ————4 —=— ==
53,000,000‘. _____ A-'-——“'*‘!:‘__"*"__-A__—__A_ - = ——— o - - o - - —a
| NPy !
$2,000,000 ‘—I——e‘--l—-\——-—-——l-———-l————l-—-/—‘-\——--l——-?—-l— - —u
It % N
#
B, / p
$1,000,000 A Pin )
\ # Lo,
J ’ A - 7 N e y \A b
h ~ - b = ~
- _, - ~
S0 2 » - ~. 37 R Do
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Construction -~ Equipment —+ General Expenses =—s=Total Expenses
- & Fees Revenue -m Mill Levy Revenue =s=Total Revenue

The information on the figure above corresponds to the following.

o Construction: Anticipated schedule and costs of all District construction project. Major
construction projects are summarized in the boxes within the figure.

e FEquipment: Anticipated replacement dates and costs of all District equipment. Major
equipment replacements are summarized in the boxes within the figure.

e General Expenses: Labor, general operating, fuel, insurance and all other non-
construction and non-equipment replacement expenses.

e Total Expenses: Sum of construction, equipment, and general expenses.

e [Fees Revenue: Revenue from tipping fees and other customer charges (e.g., confidential
disposal charges, tarp fees, etc.).



Memorandum (cont’d) BURNS&WQDONNELL

March 26, 2021
Page 4

® Mill Levy Revenue: Mill levy and auto tax revenue. Note that it is assumed that mill levy
revenue in 2022 will be approximately $200,000 less than 2021 and then hold at that
amount through the remainder of the projection period.

e Total Revenue: Sum of fee revenue and mill levy revenue.

Long-Term Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities
The District’s four landfills have significant closure and post-closure expenses. The following
summarizes the anticipated amount and timing of those expenses.

Closure and Post-Closure Costs

Projected Closure Cost Post-Closure Costs Post-Closure Costs
Closure Date (30-year total) (50-year total)
Dubois 2075 $311,970 $813,530 $949,118
Lander 2028 $2,719,660 $3,005,560 $3,506,487
Sand Draw 2054 $3,522,610 $2,808,610 $3,276,712
Shoshoni 2021 $1,319,210 $575,760 $670,553
Total Liability $7,873,450 $7,203,460 $8,402,870

Note: All costs are Present Value (2020).

The District’s total closure and post-closure liability, assuming a 30-year closure period, is
$15,076,910. If the post-closure period were to extend to 50-years, the total liability increases to
$16,276,320. Costs to be incurred during the post-closure period include groundwater
monitoring, erosion control, fencing, reporting, and other activities necessary to maintain the
landfills after their closed and before they are stable enough to stop monitoring.




Memorandum (cont’d)

March 26, 2021

Page 5

Landfill Operation Metrics
The following table summarizes the landfill metrics for each of the four landfills for the 2019-

BURNS &EDONNELL

2020 fiscal year.
2019 — 2020 Landfill Metrics
Tons Volume Airspace Utilization | Remaining Volume Soil Balance
Disposed Consumed | (lbs. per cubic yard) (cubic yards) (cubic yards)
(cubic yards)
Dubois 578 2,132 542 186,714 99,000
Lander 31,829 57,991 1,098 480,224 92,000
Sand Draw 3,653 7,104 1,029 2,364,051 341,790
Shoshoni’ NA 12,854 NA 5,864 29,700
Notes:

1. Shoshoni landfill does not have a scale. All waste received is measured in volume. All three other landfills weigh
waste received prior to disposal.

2. Soil balance is the net volume of soil available onsite for all future tandfill operations. All four landfills are in a
surplus situation.

NA = Not Applicable

Ibs = pounds

The following summarizes the information presented in the table above.
Tons Disposed: The weighed amount of waste disposed of in the landfill during the audited year.
Volume Consumed: The airspace consumed in the landfill during the audited year.

Airspace Utilization: An industry standard metric for measuring the efficiency of filling
operations. The higher the airspace utilization the longer the more waste that can be disposed of
in the landfill footprint; thus, extending the life of the landfill and delaying construction of a new
landfill. A good landfill operation maintains an airspace utilization between 1,000 and 1,200 1bs
per cubic yard. Lower airspace utilizations can occur at construction and demolition debris
landfills (e.g., the Dubois Landfill) due to the bulky nature of the waste received.

Remaining Volume: The remaining permitted airspace in the landfill at the end of the audited
year.

Soil Balance: The volume of onsite soil that can be used for cover operations less the amount of
soil that is needed for cover operations.

Closing
Additional details, including assumptions, are included in the annual landfill capacity reports.
Figures and tables used to complete landfill calculations are also included.



S
BURNSN‘ISDONNELL

February 10, 2021

Mr. Andrew Frey, P.E.

Superintendent

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
P.O. Box 1400

Lander, WY 82520

Re: FY 2019-2020 Capacity Audit for Sand Draw Landfill, Fremont County, Wyoming
Dear Mr. Frey:

Burns & McDonnell has completed volume and airspace utilization calculations for the Sand
Draw Landfill in accordance with Authorization No. 28 dated July 20, 2020. The calculations
are based on the July 11, 2020, survey completed by William H. Smith & Associates, Inc. and
compared to the July 12, 2019, survey and the current permitted final cover grades.

Attached are drawings showing the existing conditions, final cover plan, and the cut/fill depths
between the following surfaces:

» Figure 1 — 2020 Existing Conditions

» Figure 2 — Final Cover Plan (Trihydro Corporation)

» Figure 3 —2020 Airspace Consumed Isopach (July 2020 Survey over July 2019 Survey)
» Figure 4 — 2020 Airspace Remaining Isopach (Final Cover Plan over July 2020 Survey)

Also attached is a table showing the remaining fill projections based on the assumptions outlined
in this letter, and closure and post-closure tables.

AIRSPACE UTILIZATION

The results of the calculations were used to obtain the current airspace utilization factor (AUF).
The volumes were calculated using AutoCAD Civil 3D.

The calculated AUF for the landfill over the period from July 12, 2019, and July 11, 2020, was
1,029 pounds per cubic yard (Ib/cy). The AUF was calculated by dividing the total weight of
waste disposed by the total consumed airspace (including daily cover soil) over the same period.
Based on waste receipts over the FY 2019- 2020 the total tonnage placed in the landfill during
this period was 3,653 tons. From the annual survey, the total consumed airspace was 7,104 cubic
yards.

As discussed below in the Future Air Space Consumption Rates and Site Life section, the
majority of the MSW disposal at the Sand Draw Landfill was suspended on July 1, 2014, and
diverted to the Lander Landfill.

8201 Norman Center Drive \ Suite 300 \ Bloomington, MN 55437
O 952-656-6003 \ F 952-229-2923 \ burnsmed.com



BURNS &VEDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 2

LANDFILL CAPACITY

Based on the current permitted final cover contours compared to the July 11, 2020, survey, the
remaining waste and daily cover capacity of the Sand Draw Landfill, as currently permitted, is
2,364,051 cubic yards. This remaining capacity does not include final cover or intermediate
cover. Soil stockpiles along the east side of the permitted landfill are partially in the landfill
footprint and will add a few thousand yards of capacity to the landfill when moved in the future
as part of landfill operations.

The remaining capacity of the Sand Draw Landfill is greatly increased when the expansion area
is included. The conceptual design of the expansion area has an estimated capacity of
approximately 4,556,000 cubic yards; thus, the Sand Draw Landfill has approximately 6,920,051
cubic yards of capacity remaining when the expansion area is considered.

Burns & McDonnell reviewed the expansion area conceptual design as part of the 2015 capacity
audit and found that the volume calculations appear reasonable. It was noted by the Burns &
McDonnell team that there appear to be opportunities to get even more capacity out of the
expansion area than shown in the current conceptual design. This would be done by filling the
areas between the valleys created by the future expansion cells. Therefore, it is our opinion that
the current expansion area capacity should be considered conservative.

FUTURE AIR SPACE CONSUMPTION RATES AND SITE LIFE

The amount of waste that was landfilled at the Sand Draw Landfill in FY 2019-2020 was 3,653
tons.! This is a slight decrease from the 3,776 tons received in the previous fiscal year.

In 2014 MSW that was typically received at the Sand Draw Landfill was diverted to the Lander
Landfill. The Sand Draw MSW will continue to be diverted to Lander until the Lander Landfill
is closed. Capacity at the Lander Landfill is anticipated to be reached in 2028 and the Lander
waste would then be diverted to the Sand Draw Landfill at that time. The following tonnages of
waste have been received at Sand Draw since 2011:

» July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 = 27,358 tons
» July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 = 24,944 tons
» July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 = 19,059 tons

! Included in the total tonnage landfilled in FY 2020 is MSW (150 tons), C&D (3,117 tons), biowaste (0.22 tons),
animal wastes (154 tons), Carcasses (14 tons), confidential records (11 tons) and Asbestos Containing Material (208
tons). Note that the majority of MSW waste to the Sand Draw Landfill was rerouted to the Lander Landfill
beginning July 1, 2014.



BURNS &EDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 3

» July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 = 3,629 tons (began sending waste to Lander)
» July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 = 4,466 tons

» July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 = 3,038 tons

» July 1,2017 to June 30, 2018 = 3,402 tons

» July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 = 3,705 tons

» July 12,2019 to July 11, 2020 = 3,688 tons

For purposes of calculating the remaining landfill life, the FY 2020 rate of waste received was
used as the starting year tonnage for projecting waste receipts through 2027. Tn 2028, the total
waste being disposed of at both Lander and Sand Draw was used. A 1.0% annual growth rate
was used to project future annual waste receipts. Projections are based on the historic average
airspace utilization factor at Sand Draw of 922 Ib/cy before the Lander Landfill closure. An AUF
of 1,000 Ib/cy represented the waste filling after the Lander Landfill closure. The estimation that
the AUF will consistently hold near 1,000 Ib/cy is anticipated due to the landfill’s change to
primarily accept MSW, the significant increase in MSW tonnage, and the plan to operate the
landfill as an area fill.

Based on the growth rate, the AUF assumptions discussed above, and the final cover design
included in the 2017 permit, the landfill will reach capacity in 2054. When the expansion area
volume is included, the Sand Draw Landfill will reach capacity in 2092. The attached
Remaining Airspace Table presents the airspace utilization projections.

SOIL BALANCE

Soil balance calculations were completed by comparing the amount of soil required for landfill
operations to the amount of soil available onsite. The following summarizes the soil required
and available for the Landfill as currently permitted.

Soil Required

Daily Cover Soil — The waste to daily cover soil is assumed to be 4:1 (i.¢., 20 percent of the
waste mass below the intermediate cover is daily cover soil).> Based on the remaining site life
calculations discussed above, there is approximately 2,364,051 cubic yards of waste and daily

2 A waste to daily cover soil ratio is estimated to be 4:1 when the Landfill is fully open. During the period when the
Landfill is closed except for waste in the immediate vicinity of the Landfill, the waste to daily cover soil ratio will
be close to 2:1 due to the operational changes associated with operating a landfill that receives small amounts of
waste. Because the volume received during this period is minimal compared to the overall volume of the Landfill,
the impact of the lower waste to soil ratio is not considered in the site life calculations.



S
BURNS .NWSDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 4

cover airspace remaining at the Landfill; thus, approximately 474,700 cubic yards of soil are
needed for daily cover in the landfill operation.

» Intermediate Cover Soil — The landfill is required to have intermediate cover over the waste
mass prior to final cover. The amount of intermediate cover soil needed, based on the area
that remains to be closed and a 12-inch intermediate cover, is 109,000 cubic yards.

» Final Cover Soil — The amount of soil required to close the landfill is estimated to be 354,450
cubic yards based on the currently permitted cover profile that includes 39-inches of lightly
compacted classified fill.

» Total Soil Requirements — The total soil requirement for the Sand Draw Landfill as currently
permitted is 938,210 cubic yards.

Soil Available

» Existing Soil Stockpiles — Previous surveys identified existing soil stockpiles. The volumes of
these stockpiles were calculated to be approximately 80,000 cubic yards.

» Other Borrow Areas — The FY 2013 capacity audit (Trihydro Corporation 2013) identified
potential soils from the expansion area with a volume of approximately 1,200,000 cubic
yards.

» Total Soil Available — Based on the estimates provided above, the Sand Draw Landfill has an
available soil volume of approximately 1,280,000 cubic yards.

Soil Balance

Based on the soil required estimates and the soil available estimates described above, the Sand
Draw Landfill has a soil surplus of approximately 341,790 cubic yards. It should be noted that
the future expansion area will need another borrow source for daily cover operations from area
onsite that is not within the footprint of the expansion area.

CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE COST ESTIMATES

Burns & McDonnell completed cost estimates for closure and post-closure management of the
Sand Draw Landfill as currently permitted. The estimated present value of the closure cost for
the Landfill is $3,522,610. This is an increase of $67,810 compared to the 2019 estimate. The
estimated present value of the post-closure cost estimate is $2,808,610. This is a $54,880
increase compared to the 2019 estimate. Both the closure and post-closure estimates are due to
inflationary construction cost adjustments.

The post-closure cost estimate is based on an assumed 30-year post-closure period. The closure
and post closure cost estimates are attached.

It should be noted that Federal EPA guidelines require states to enforce a minimum 30-year post
closure period. It is likely that post-closure will extend beyond 30-years — although at a lower
cost. For post-closure to come to an end the landfill needs to be stable and not producing



NS
BURNS “’IEDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 5

leachate and/or landfill gas at significant levels that warrant monitoring. For comparison, the
post-closure cost of 50-years, assuming a 75% reduction in annual post-closure costs due to
reduced sampling and property management costs for years 31- 50, is $3,276,712.

CLOSING

Should you have any questions regarding this letter report, please do not hesitate to contact Matt
Evans at 952-656-3629 or at maevans@burnsmcd.com.

Sincerely,
Burns & McDonnell

M%&N/ ‘.

Matthew J. Evans, PE
Senior Civil Engineer



Tables



SAND DRAW LANDFILL-2020 REMAINING AIRSPACE

Sand Draw-Waste Received Tonnage (07/12/19 to 07/11/20)=
Lander-Predicted Waste Received Tonnage (2028) =
Predicted Future Generation Growth =

Sand Draw Average Aispace Utilization Factor (AUF) =
Sand Draw and Lander- Average Airspace Utilization Factor (AUF) =
Currently Permitted Area-Remaining Waste Capacity (without final and intermediate cover) =

Remaining Airspace Table

Total Tonnage (Sand

Year
Draw)
2020 1,722
2021 3,690
2022 3,727
2023 3,764
2024 3,802
2025 3,840
2026 3,878
2027 3,917
2028 3,956
2029 3,996
2030 4,036
2031 4,076
2032 4,117
2033 4,158
2034 4,199
2035 4,241
2036 4,284
2037 4,327
2038 4,370
2039 4,414
2040 4,458
2041 4,502
2042 4,547
2043 4,593
2044 4,639
2045 4,685
2046 4,732
2047 4,779
2048 4,827
2049 4,875
2050 4,924
2051 4,973
2052 5,023
2053 5,073
2054 5,124
2055 5,175
2056 5,227
2057 5,279
2058 5,332
2059 5,385
Notes:

Total Tonnage
(Lander)*

OO0 00O 0 O0o0O0o

34,467
34,811
35,159
35,511
35,866
36,225
36,587
36,953
37,323
37,696
38,073
38,453
38,838
39,226
39,619
40,015
40,415
40,819
41,227
41,640
42,056
42,476
42,901
43,330
43,764
44,201
44,643
45,090
45,541
45,996
46,456
46,920

Annual Airspace
Consumed (cy)

3,968
8,506
8,591
8,677
8,763
8,851
8,939
9,029

76,845
77,614
78,390
79,174
79,966
80,765
81,573
82,389
83,213
84,045
84,885
85,734
86,591
87,457
88,332
89,215
90,107
91,008
91,919
92,838
93,766
94,704
95,651
96,607
97,573
98,549
99,535

100,530

101,535

102,551

103,576

104,612

Remaining Current
Permitted Capacity (cy)

2,360,083
2,351,577
2,342,986
2,334,310
2,325,547
2,316,696
2,307,756
2,298,727
2,221,882
2,144,268
2,065,878
1,986,704
1,906,738
1,825,973
1,744,400
1,662,011
1,578,798
1,494,754
1,409,868
1,324,134
1,237,543
1,150,086
1,061,754
972,539
882,431
791,423
699,504
606,667
512,901
418,197
322,546
225,939
128,365
29,816
-69,718
-170,248
271,783
-374,334
-477,910
582,522

3,653

34,467

1%

868

1,000

2,364,051

<== Capacity Reached in 2054

1. Calculations assume waste from Lander will be diverted to the Sand Draw Landfilll when Lander reaches capacity.

tans
tans

Ib/cy
Ib/cy
cy

Date:

10/23/2020

Z:\Clients\ENS\FCSWD\125750_2020-2021Srvcs\Support\Data\2020 Capacity Audits\Sand Draw\Spreadsheets\20201023_ Airspace Utilization Fremont County -

SandDraw



SAND DRAW LANDFILL-2020 REMAINING AIRSPACE

Sand Draw-Waste Received Tonnage (07/12/19 to 07/11/20)=
Lander-Predicted Waste Received Tonnage {2028) =

Predicted Future Generation Growth =

Sand Draw Average Aispace Utilization Factor {AUF) =

Sand Draw and Lander- Average Airspace Utilization Factor (AUF) =

Currently Permitted Area-Remaining Waste Capacity (without final and intermediate cover) =
Expansion Area-Remaining Waste Capacity {(without final and intermediate cover) =
Ultimate Remaining Waste Capacity {without final and intermediate cover) =

Remaining Airspace Table

Year Total Tonnage (Sand Total Tonnage Annual Airspace
Draw) (Lander)’ Consumed (cy)
L I 0
2021 3,690 1] 8,506
2022 3,727 [+] B,591
2023 3,764 1] 8,677
2024 3,802 1] 8,763
2025 3,840 0 8,851
2026 3,878 [{] 8,939
2027 3,917 0 9,029
2028 3,956 34,467 76,845
2029 3,996 34,811 77,614
2030 4,036 35,159 78,390
2031 4,076 35,511 79,174
2032 4,117 35,866 79,966
2033 4,158 36,225 80,765
2034 4,199 36,587 81,573
2035 4,241 36,953 82,389
2036 4,284 37,323 83,213
2037 4,327 37,696 84,045
2038 4,370 38,073 84,885
2039 4,414 38,453 85,734
2040 4,458 38,838 86,591
2041 4,502 39,226 B7,457
2042 4,547 39,619 88,332
2043 4,593 40,015 89,215
2044 4,639 40,415 90,107
2045 4,685 40,819 91,008
2046 4,732 41,227 91,919
2047 4,779 41,640 92,838
2048 4,827 42,056 93,766
2049 4,875 42,476 94,704
2050 4,924 42,901 95,651
2051 4,973 43,330 96,607
2052 5,023 43,764 97,573
2053 5,073 " 44,201 98,549
2054 5,124 44,643 99,535
2055 5,175 45,090 100,530
2056 5,227 45,541 101,535
2057 5,279 45,996 102,551
2058 5,332 46,456 103,576
2059 5,385 46,920 104,612
2060 5,439 47,390 105,658
2061 5,494 47,864 106,715
2062 5,549 48,342 107,782
2063 5,604 48,826 108,860
2064 5,660 45,314 109,948
2065 5,717 49,807 111,048
2066 5,774 50,305 112,158
2067 5,832 50,808 113,280
2068 5,890 51,316 114,412
2069 5,949 51,829 115,557
2070 6,008 52,348 116,712
2071 6,068 52,871 117,879
2072 6,129 53,400 119,058
2073 6,190 53,934 120,249
2074 6,252 54,473 121,451
2075 6,315 55,018 122,666
2076 6,378 55,568 123,892
2077 6,442 56,124 125,131
2078 6,506 56,685 126,383
2079 6,571 57,252 127,646
20B0 6,637 57,824 128,923
2081 6,703 58,403 130,212
2082 6,770 58,987 131,514
2083 6,838 59,577 132,829
2084 6,906 60,172 134,158
2085 6,976 60,774 135,499
2086 7,045 61,382 136,354
2087 7,116 61,996 138,223
2088 7,187 62,616 139,605
2089 7,259 63,242 141,001
2090 7,331 63,874 142,411
2091 7,405 64,513 143,835
2092 7,479 65,158 145,273
2093 7,553 65,810 146,726

Notes:

Remaining Ultimate
Capacity {cy)

6,916,083
6,907,577
6,898,986
6,890,310
6,881,547
6,872,696
6,863,756
6,854,727
6,777,882
6,700,268
6,621,878
6,542,704
6,462,738
6,381,973
6,300,400
6,218,011
6,134,798
6,050,754
5,965,868
5,880,134
5,793,543
5,706,086
5,617,754
5,528,539
5,438,431
5,347,423
5,255,504
5,162,667
5,068,901
4,974,197
4,878,546
4,781,939
4,684,365
4,585,816
4,486,282
4,385,752
4,284,217
4,181,666
4,078,090
3,973,478
3,867,820
3,761,106
3,653,324
3,544,464
3,434,516
3,323,469
3,211,311
3,098,031
2,983,619
2,868,062
2,751,350
2,633,471
2,514,413
2,394,164
2,272,713
2,150,047
2,026,155
1,901,024
1,774,641
1,646,995
1,518,072
1,387,860
1,256,346
1,123,517
989,359
853,860
717,006
578,783
439,178
298,177
155,766
11,931
-133,342
-280,068

3,653

tons

34,467

tons

1%

868

Thfey

1,000

Ibfey

7,364,051

4,556,000

5,920,051

£y

<== Capacity Reached in 20392

1. Calculations assume waste from Lander will be diverted to the Sand Draw Landfilll when Lander reaches capacity.

Date:

10/23/2020

Z:\Clients\ENS\FCSWD\125750_2020-2021Srvcs\Support\Data\2020 Capacity Audits\Sand Draw\Spreadsheets\20201023 _ Airspace Utilization Fremont County - SandDraw



Closure Cost Estimate
Sand Draw Landfill

Item No. Line ltem Est Qty. Unit * Unit Price Price Description
bl & General Site Preparation
1 Mobilization, Demobilization, Bonding, insurance a % 2,191,070 175,290 Judgement includes clearing, grubbing, construction
2 Construction BMPs {erosion & Sediment Controls) 5 % 2,191,070 109,550 Judgement; includes plan, silt fence, checks, surfacing
i i i tand
3 Minor Road Improvements 5 DAY 2,270 11,350 Judgement; includes one heavy piece of equipment and one
operator.
$296,190
Site Grading and Associated Earthwaork
4 Grade intermediate cover 65 ACRE 1710 111,150 HFCD 31‘ 22 16.10 3300; portion of 77-acre closure graded
prior project
$111,150
Final Cover
g . P .
5 Load, haul, and place final cover soil from on-site stockpile 354,250 cY S.10 1,806,680 :P:Jiclfir::nt based on similar projects; 67-acre closure at 6.5
$1,806,680
system
The water balance final cover system does not include a
6 Purchase and install geocomposite strips - SF 063 barrier layer, so landfill gas can disffuse through the soil profile
to the ambient air.
7 Purchase and install methane vents - EA 2,270
8 Purchase and install methane probes - EA 2,270
$0
Site Reclamation
9 Grade disturbed areas 67 ACRE 1,710 114,570 HCCD 31 22 16.10 3300; all disturbed areas
10 Revegetate 67 ACRE 2,270 152,090 Judgement; similar projects, includes soil amendments
$266,660
Miscellaneous
t #1(10/12/94); adjusted f
11 Survey Control and As-Built documentation 10 1S 6,560 6580 WDEQSWG H12 worksheet 1 (10/12/94); adjusted for
inflation
$6,580
Engineering and Construction Management
12 General public notification 1 LS 3,810 3,810 judgement
13 Engineering 2nd Bid Administration 5% Ls 2,487,260 124,360 Judgement, assumes 5% af construction cost
14 Construction Quality Assurance 10% LS 2,487,260 248,730 Judgement, assumes 10% of construction cost
15 Construction Management 8% LS 2,487,260 198,980 Judgement, assumes 8% of construction cost
SUBTOTAL $575,880
SUBTOTAL 3.063,140
CONTINGENCY 15% 458,470
TOTAL CLOSURE COSTS $3,522,610
ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITATIONS
1 Pricing is for 2020 present value unless otherwise noted
2 Extended prices are rounded to the nearest $10
*Units:
AC = acre
CY = cubic yard
DAY = day
EA = each

LF = linear foot
LS = lump sum
SF = square foot
SY = square yard
YR = year

HCCD = RSMeans Heavy Construction Cost Data, 2010; adjusted for inflation
1t - Pr ional ar estimation by Burns & McDonnell




Anjenp |euswuoIIAUT JO JuBwWIIedag SuloA - DIAM

|ul[3pInD 31sBM PI|OS - DS
||]UUO@In g suing Ag uoiewi3sa Jo Juawadpn( |BuoISSB40Id - Juswaspnr

183A = YA

wns dwn} =g
1004 Jeaul| =47
yaes =vy3

Aep = AvQ
SUUNG

"pausisse uaaq sey Q0TS 0 331Jd PIPUSIXa U ‘QS SI dNjBA Q0TS 159483U BY] SI3YM SISEI Ul “JI9A3MOY ‘Q0TS 1S21E3U Y1 0] papunoJ aJe sadld papuaix3 ¢

*Pa10U SIMIBY10 SS3|UN anjea Juasald 0zOz 404 S1 Suplld T

SNOILV.LINIT B SNOILJINNSSY
079808 S1S0J 3UNSOT1I-150d V101
Ov€'99€ %ST AJDNIONILNOD
0L TYrY'T Tviolans
juswuopueqge 3qold yum asuaiadxa snoiasid uo paseq juswa3pnf 00L°S 0LS v3 0T juawuopueqe aqoud aueyis|y €T
sy09foud Jejjw)s uo paseq ‘uawaspnr 0CL6T 089 v3 67 JUBWUOPUEQE ||]9M SUlIOHUOW J31empunoln ¢T
uolje|jul Joy paisnipe ‘2T OMS DIAM 089'ST €€°C B 0008 51507 |BAOWSY 3dU34 TT
uolie|jul Joj paisnipe ‘T DMS DIAM 090°ZTT 1 a1 0008 §150) dueU3LUIRIA 3dUBH (T
udwaspnr 00ETTT 0TLE YA 0g $3502 3dueuUSUleW |duuey) a8eulesq 6
510ds 94e(q JO UOI1RIDFBABI ‘DIUBUIIUIBW BUIINOJ SBPN[IUI Juswadpnr 00E'TTT 0TL'S HA o€ 223UBU3IUIEW SPUNOID §
uawadpnf 0TLS 0TL'E S 1 poliad 3insoj2-150d 31BUIWID] 0 UOIIIS] [/
JeaA Jad auo (Aep 4ad s@D0 00TS ‘00TS®@ 009'9€ 0ee'T Ava o€ UOI1BIUSWNI0P JUSWI|1IS 40 [0JIU0D ASAINS g
J3weep 1ys 0 ‘00TS® Y293 Sd9 4y 8 ‘09T @ S1d §°0 9Ae) 3uswadpnf
wawsaspnr 005004 0SE'sT HA 0€ wa3sAs U0I193]|02 9)BYIED| 34NINY 3Y) JO uonesddQ §
12EJ1U02 3UlJ0}UOW |BIUBLUOIIAUS T0Z 00V T80T 080°9¢ YA [s}3 SurojUON J91eMpuUnolIn
s123foud Jejiwis uo paseq ‘WuswIBpnr 006'Z0T 0EV'E HA 0¢ SuloNUOIN dUBYIBIN €
uojjejjul 4oy paisnipe ‘¢T DMS DIAM 001'9C 0/8 A [0}3 SU01323d5U| 31IS 34NSO[2-150d ¢
juswaspnr QOETTT 0TL'E 4A  Of Buidaayploday T
uonduasaq 321id papuaixl adlid wun « NuUN "AYD 153 w3y auy] ‘ON way

llypue] meiq pues

ajew)s3 150D a.nso|)-150d




Figures



T e e N _

1
e [ @ 3 1394E \\, ) 1534 M TTVOS
—————
v — L 3uN9Id rd I _ o0 00z )
I
ossszL \\ _ R i
P r] isajous i A |
1
SNOILIANOD DNILSIXE 0202 4 [z N \M_ﬂhz/
/ i . _ i
ALNNOD INONINS Vi x / '«
1 I
e &nl- —— L_ I
e et e Moo i | .
DIISI 1esodsia 215Em POS i - A\ aaHis _
Auunod wowari X i !
1

\ o . TR N

SNYAS W . N\ /
puoega | pausisan | - % § "
WHILYANHS Ve 'S 0202 4360150 N \ 3
bcan aup . \ _
L LY
0z0z/EL/0L k| X
azzuamﬂ.:% SUWITABAENS V. 2 L
_ 61y 3 B
&
Y b
| 1
FUM00LS A I
0sdOL ] L
(-
\y
Pl
VIHY TYSOdSIA

o —— T — —— —————— —— —

Ivsodsia

3LSYM ONV 'ONITIdHO01E

‘'NOILVAYOX3 V3LV ¥3A00

'NOILONHLSNOD SH3INMO OL
3N0 AMYA AVA AHJYHOO0JOL 3LIS (4

oY
R 8
SHNOLNOD ONIZSIX3 ) ey ‘m
e, @l JR— N —_——
¥IHY soid n....&$ avi# I_
TWECHEIT WS = — Supy =3 i
AYVANNOB ALYIdONY === = siH :
AHVONNOE AIAYNS —  — | _
! - TERAAAL i f
STTIM DMHOLINGN s \\ SumnAsming ! s
! oLy
| -
AHVONNOE JLEVM = e P — H i
¥ SISy N i
soNaTIng @ i L= _ [
f =
> 14 z |
savoy . 1 £ |
| Iy Bamo olgve
EEREN] I g z _
/ — 1
|
FSNOW WS
——— i o, 7 I} T !
1334 r A e 3as
OML SI TVAHILNI HNOLINOD X3ANI '€ —— | _
5 VI | 7.
I
I

_.%ﬂ- |||r|“n.1|l|w\.ﬁ.x| . ey

Q3 L¥IIaNI
SYIHVY YO 0202 ‘€1 ¥IBOLD0 NO dOHS JONVNILNIVIA -
O3IAIOIY3d AIAYNS TYNOLLIAaY
ASAHNS OZOE 45 A SHL

NO Q3SV8 Si AHJVHOO0dOL 31IS 3 JONVHLNT TTIdanv -4 _ 4

‘S3LON

EORE
vopdyasep Pua | Aq | eep |eu

£t (13 33 ok L] i 9 s r T 4 )



e

=

i :

|

.
PRSI

\

1

ey

| [ 3
—12

. 0 2
= TOP OF FINAL COVER - " prAwN o WARNING
— ORIGINAL AREA CHECKED BY «S =i
0 M IS MEASURE 1'IN | ENGTH
N | LIFETIME OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATION U ininif - T';E'I“N?E%Vg[‘fs‘gﬂg * | 4018 liGiit f o REGULATORY REVIEW REP | 45 |
SAND DRAW LANDFILL b Al [ LML .Fﬂv_ ﬁ: BSUF FOR REVIEW “:: EK:U
takican e, FTETE T "‘—1——4
FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING T P asv-spLr FiNaLGRADE-ORIGINAL VIR H—




Craid L TN e A i e R e et L

RO 528, DOMELN | SAE aeen Gicis i e e EPTYS CanDENDD Euspe
e e R L T L ] m:t 4
R ¥ e € ey = . m
i P
-~
v = CIHAOL ol & 4 4
Al Sunmeip
. -~ P
- - <~ \
[ =
envos — 120i0.8 % b - Lz 22 \
(A3AMNS 6102 ¥IAO AZAHNS 0202) = RS P Ny
30VdSYIY GINNSNOD 0207 - == ST A 27 W
= = %
ALNNOD LNOW3S = = ~ A RSN
= = -
L5 et >z Ny
= o~
2 s~ =i 22 . Ny, ']
rspp————— i 2 ~ Ny L}
PIs|a [esodsia 2isem plios 4 ~ SOty DLOERLL Ny
Auno) owaiy |- 4 - iy SLINT AINENAS N
_. e - - = . =
_u__ # — e R i
o N 1
0y = HIVDL ONIYE S
SNYAT W . f Al S ISN0H TV
R — Y ..L.m. ) ,\\ ,
TYHILYNHSYd S 1202 A¥vVNYE3S __ = : : Zd . o .,._wn == !
poyiesop ol.ne._ ————— e e e e S e S . = " e T AR e e e T e S R = s T - i 4 e |
-~ e - T ey S = g g T i et s = e o Ry x - —— —— — \
\ Zin — - =
W\ s B e e e L Y S P s o s e o e e T —
TIENNOGSW N i iV . R = 7 e T O T T T 7 = i : L
SNANEN M - S : 2
. . . . . . . . . T ——— —— —— —— —————— . . . o . . . ko . . . . e . . . . . . .
__— | Vs | |
A | |
WS I
— IWEOSSIG STVLIW _
_ | 93308V adY I
ABYONNOR ALM3dONd — == — .___ | | _ =
i =
[ I | _ =
SUNOLNOD ONILSIXI | =
__ | w3y | ] i
X — TEOEID MEN — | =
\ E
> AMYONNCS A3ANNS — e o _ _ _ ‘-M
b
STIIM ONINOLINOW _— _ ! : ! _
e | I N _ |
{ ——
n | Aorald T4 e < I 7
AHVANNOB JLSYM .“___ _ ﬁm‘dﬁuvzpuw - % _ f
/ | N | 4
i by - wal
soNaIng @ _,\"\ —h - \ _v
1 L -
\ B ==
savod —v 1 | | o “Feoniiis |
] [ LA |
KO ERER ) | FEY T _ s — d_ HENT
: © VAY MOBHCE - | ! SO 1
2 am | o S
SQUVA DIBND = AD | | ] /
| | HOHE !
MMt | _ _ FINVNG LNV — 1
! s
1no | | — = > _
HOvdOS] _ N | N %
1
i |
1004 | _ [iniAeer 3N _
OML ZHY STYANIINI ¥NOINGD & _ _..— et B g - Wome T
0202 [ — e g = - ADTEL 4D | \ iy
£1 4380100 NO dIWHOIHId P Lv= E¥auy MOHHOE -~ . |
AZAMNS TYNOILIAQY WOM — I =2 ~ TS \ Il
SI AYYONNOS ASANNS Q37138Y1 (4 A . . o TP
IHL JAISNI NMOHS AHIYHOOdOL 2 1 ! _ " . _—— — o — e ~ N %
=N s - = s e “
AZANNS o= = A e =T “ | N !
g G |
6402 ‘0% ATNT IHL ONY ‘ATANNS | | XLl
0202 ‘L1 AINr IHL NITMLIE gl | ht N |
TN THL SINISTHATY | | g ~ | /,_
NMOHS HOVAOSI KL L ‘ L - ~ _ :
| T S L . . S T — — T T T —— — — — — ————— — ——— ———————— —— — — ———— i —— ——— — —— ———— ———— /
T — — i — " — . — " ——— — . ——— —— " — e — " — - — - — - — —_— — — — — Qe
e B e e e e = e sii——— e ek
— E % L] = B Sl
Ny \\\ 081 \\
IENIEY ) N F ozozieLoL
R M S 5.4 ,. e suwit A3nsns
vopdusssp | pya | g | mep |Bu \\ F il
: ] 5 ¥ £ z g

143 £43 113 oL & L

L]




I
s 1 ] ¥ auw

[e:73-74%

wepos | 0 ook |

(A3AYNS 0Z0Z ¥3A0 31SYM 40 dO1)
30OYdSHIY ONINIYIWIA 0202

ALNNOJ LNOWIN

...... -
puIsIq [esods|a isem plios
Ajuno) Juowasd

SNVAI W . !
IVHILYdNHSYd S 0207 ¥380120
pmmon wep |

TTEANNOGSH M
SNANEN

SHNOLNCI ONILSIX3

AYVONNQE ASAYNS —
AYVONNOH ALH3dOHd == ===

AMYONNOE JLEVA === === ==

ST713M ONIFOLINOW

SONIgTINE E

>
savon /L

>

SQYVA DI8ND = AD

nd =

1n3

'HOVdOSH

T4 3ISSVID

Q3LOVdAWOD ATLHON 30
S3HONI-6E "HIAOD JLYIOSWHILNI
30 S3HONI-ZL SI 3N4Cud

Y3A0D TYNIJ OILLIWYId THL

H3A0D ILVIOSWHILNI ¥O TN
3AN7TONI LON ©d SINNTI0A 114

1004
OML IHY STVAYILNI ¥NCLNOD

'0Z02 '€} ¥IA0LI0 NO 0INHOAM3d

A3AYNS TYNOILIOQY WO¥S

SI AYYONNOB A3ANNS a3738V71
3HL 3AISNI NMOHS AHdVYD0dOL 7

"AIAYNS 0Z0Z 'LL ATNC

ANV SUNOLNOD 1SV 30 JOL
IYNIS 3HL N33IMLIE 71714000 IHL
LNISIAUJIY NMOHS HOVLOSI IHL

3| dS gaR2ms v
dopdyaEsp. | p¥2 | Aq | siep 0w

T o A e e M . L Vi i et ) i

\EE LS
TYSOdSIA MER

WECHEID STYAIN
F SI0NVI ey

a/l\'\l/L e

._ A

HOYJ0SI 0202

4




Lander Landfill
2019-2020 Capacity Audit



Memorandum

Date:

To:

March 26, 2021

BURNSQMSDONNELL

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District Board of Directors

From: Matt Evans, Burns & McDonnell

Subject: Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District — Operations Summary

This memorandum presents the following:

Summary of the District’s financial position

Summary of projected expenses and revenues
Long-term closure/post-closure financial responsibilities
Landfill operation metrics

Financial Position

The following table summarizes the key financial considerations for the four District facilities.

Closure /
FY Post Closure
2019- | Projected Closure "Immediate"” Post- Post- Future | Future
Site 2020 Closure Cost Closure Closure Closure | Development Development
AUF Year Cost (30-yr) (50-yr) (2021-2041) Fur? d
(Ibslyd?) Balance
Lander 1,098 2028 $2,719,660 | $2,702,000 | $3,005,560 | $3,506,487 | $5,041,346
2054
g?:v(\j/ 1,029 (active | $3,522,610 | $5,902,610 | $2,808,610 | $3,276,712 | $1,291,346
area)
Shoshoni N/A 2021 $1,319,210 | $217,000 $575,760 | $670,553 $0
Dubois 542 2075 $311,970 | $1,323,210 | $813,530 | $949,118 $3,105,208 -
Total $7,873,450 | $10,144,820 | $7,203,460 | $8,402,870 | $9,437,899 | $ 16,466,876




Memorandum (cont’d) BURNS&VIEDONNELL

March 26, 2021
Page 2

The 10-year financial projection for the District is presented in the following figure.
District 10-Year Financial Projection

$18,000,000
— — 2028
$16,000,000 - nder tandilf Cosed. " N
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
2 2023
2Ly $10,000,000 Lander Transfer Statlon Construction: 2.5M
[=) tander Landflll Site Improvements: 6. 7M 2025
[a] Other Const: 100k Lander Leachate Treatment 2030
7 Front ;m; L?;g;; 300k Olhsevrs&:ls::l;dom 2028 Lander Landfill
2 $8,000,000 e erianet 40 scpr 70k T
% SO EROL 8 Blader 200k *.
.'. . Matl-off Truck: 200k Other Equlp: 100k - "
$6,000‘OOO .'.-. .-'. -... ..‘- '.'-.'..- .."..--,'..' ‘ o :
.._-;::,__,.'_____........_;'.,____.-_"__.._......__-_--:'_';-u-c'_"_-----_-.';-...._" ______ Py T
$4,000,000 -
$2,000,000
$0
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
----- Projected Expenses = == Projected Revenue s Fund Balance Closure/Post-Closure Liability

The information shown on the figure corresponds to the following.

o Projected Expenses: Total labor, general operating, equipment purchases, and
construction expenses.

o Projected Revenue: Total revenue from fees, mill levy, auto tax and all other forms of
District revenue.

e [Fund Balance: District bank account that is set aside for landfill closure, post-closure and
other large District construction projects.

o Annual Construction and Equipment Expenses. Large construction and equipment
expenses are summarized in boxes corresponding to the year of the expense.

Expenses and Revenues
The projected expenses and revenues for the District are summarized on the following Figure:



Memorandum ccont’d) BURNS \\MSDONNELL

March 26, 2021

Page 3
District Projected Revenues and Expenses
2023
Lander Transfer Statlon Constructlon: 2.5M
Lander Landflll Site Improvementls: 0.7M
Other Canst: 100k 2028 Land:?::ndﬁll
58,000,000 Front;:az:?;gzrauok Lunderl;zﬁ';::fl;a\ment ek Y]
Other Const: 400k e
cﬂz(::;ﬂ:m Scraper: 200k
$7,000,000 Roll-off Truck: 200k l;;u:rggg:
Other Eq;JIp: 100k
$6,000,000
v $5,000,000 =
AL
3
& $4,000,000
=2
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
b5 G X ~ L
S0 S =47 i
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Construction -« Equipment — o General Expenses —o—Total Expenses
- i Fees Revenue - MIll Levy Revenue ==Total Revenue

The information on the figure above corresponds to the following.

e Construction: Anticipated schedule and costs of all District construction project. Major
construction projects are summarized in the boxes within the figure.

e FEquipment: Anticipated replacement dates and costs of all District equipment. Major
equipment replacements are summarized in the boxes within the figure.

e General Expenses: Labor, general operating, fuel, insurance and all other non-
construction and non-equipment replacement expenses.

e Total Expenses: Sum of construction, equipment, and general expenses.

e [ees Revenue: Revenue from tipping fees and other customer charges (e.g., confidential
disposal charges, tarp fees, etc.).



Memorandum (cont’d)

March 26, 2021

Page 4

\J

BURNS\ MEDONNELL

e Mill Levy Revenue: Mill levy and auto tax revenue. Note that it is assumed that mill levy
revenue in 2022 will be approximately $200,000 less than 2021 and then hold at that
amount through the remainder of the projection period.

e Total Revenue. Sum of fee revenue and mill levy revenue.

Long-Term Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities
The District’s four landfills have significant closure and post-closure expenses. The following
summarizes the anticipated amount and timing of those expenses.

Closure and Post-Closure Costs

Projected Closure Cost Post-Closure Costs Post-Closure Costs
Closure Date (30-year total) (50-year total)
Dubois 2075 $311,970 $813,530 $949,118
Lander 2028 $2,719,660 $3,005,560 $3,506,487
Sand Draw 2054 $3,522,610 $2,808,610 $3,276,712
Shoshoni 2021 $1,319,210 $575,760 $670,553
Total Liability $7,873,450 $7,203,460 $8,402,870

Note: All costs are Present Value (2020).

The District’s total closure and post-closure liability, assuming a 30-year closure period, is
$15,076,910. If the post-closure period were to extend to 50-years, the total liability increases to
$16,276,320. Costs to be incurred during the post-closure period include groundwater
monitoring, erosion control, fencing, reporting, and other activities necessary to maintain the
landfills after their closed and before they are stable enough to stop monitoring.



Memorandum (cont’d)

March 26, 2021

Page 5

Landfill Operation Metrics
The following table summarizes the landfill metrics for each of the four landfills for the 2019-

\
BURNS wEDONNELL

2020 fiscal year.
2019 - 2020 Landfill Metrics
Tons Volume Airspace Utilization | Remaining Volume Soil Balance
Disposed Consumed | (Ibs. per cubic yard) (cubic yards) (cubic yards)
(cubic yards)
Dubois 578 2,132 542 186,714 99,000
Lander 31,829 57,991 1,098 480,224 92,000
Sand Draw 3,653 7,104 1,029 2,364,051 341,790
Shoshoni' NA 12,854 NA 5,864 29,700
Notes:

1. Shoshoni landfill does not have a scale. All waste received is measured in volume. Ali three other landfills weigh
waste received prior to disposal.

2. Sail balance is the net volume of soil available onsite for all future landfill operations. All four landfills are in a
surplus situation.

NA = Not Applicable

Ibs = pounds

The following summarizes the information presented in the table above.
Tons Disposed: The weighed amount of waste disposed of in the landfill during the audited year.
Volume Consumed.: The airspace consumed in the landfill during the audited year.

Airspace Utilization: An industry standard metric for measuring the efficiency of filling
operations. The higher the airspace utilization the longer the more waste that can be disposed of
in the landfill footprint; thus, extending the life of the landfill and delaying construction of a new
landfill. A good landfill operation maintains an airspace utilization between 1,000 and 1,200 lbs
per cubic yard. Lower airspace utilizations can occur at construction and demolition debris
landfills (e.g., the Dubois Landfill) due to the bulky nature of the waste received.

Remaining Volume: The remaining permitted airspace in the landfill at the end of the audited
year.

Soil Balance: The volume of onsite soil that can be used for cover operations less the amount of
soil that is needed for cover operations.

Closing
Additional details, including assumptions, are included in the annual landfill capacity reports.
Figures and tables used to complete landfill calculations are also included.



BURNS\\MEDONNELL

February 10, 2021

Mr. Andrew Frey, P.E.

Superintendent

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
P.O. Box 1400

Lander, WY 82520

Re: FY 2019-2020 Capacity Audit for Lander Landfill, Fremont County, Wyoming
Dear Mr. Frey:

Burns & McDonnell has completed volume and airspace utilization calculations for the Lander
Landfill (Landfill) in accordance with Authorization No. 28 dated July 20, 2020. The
calculations are based on comparing the July 10, 2020, survey completed by William H. Smith &
Associates, Inc., to the July 10, 2019, survey and final cover grades included in the January 25,
2018, Lifetime Operating Permit Renewal Application prepared by Trihydro Corporation.

Attached are drawings showing the existing conditions, final cover plan, and the cut/fill depths
between surveys and final cover contours. The figures include:

» Figure 1 — 2020 Existing Conditions

» Figure 2 — Final Cover Plan (Trihydro Corporation)

» Figure 3 —2020 Airspace Consumed Isopach (July 2020 Survey Over July 2019 Survey)
» Figure 4 — 2020 Airspace Remaining Isopach (Final Cover Over 2020 Survey)

Also attached are tables showing the remaining fill projections and projected closure and post-
closure costs for the Landfill.

AIRSPACE UTILIZATION

The results of the volume calculations were used to obtain the current airspace utilization factor
(AUF). The volumes were calculated using AutoCAD Civil 3D.

The calculated AUF for the main working face area of the landfill over the period from July 10
2019 to July 10, 2020 is 1,098 pounds per cubic yard (Ib/cy). This value was calculated by
dividing the total weight of waste disposed by the total consumed airspace (including daily cover
soil) over the same period. The waste disposed included loose municipal solid waste (MSW),
construction & demolition debris (C&D) waste. Per District records the total tonnage placed in
the MSW and C&D disposal area was 31,829 over the survey period. Per surveys the total
consumed airspace was 38,991 cubic yards. An additional fill volume of approximately 19,000
cubic yards was calculated using information provided by the district on excavation performed
onsite after the 2019 survey was performed. Including the additional fill volume, the total
airspace consumed between the July 2019 and July 2020 surveys was 57,991 cubic yards.

8201 Norman Center Drive \ Suite 300 \ Bloomington, MN 55437
O 952-656-6003 \ F 952-229-2923 \ burnsmed.com



BURNS\\MSDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 2

The AUF of 1,098 Ib/cy for 2020 is a decrease from last year (1,281 Ib/cy in FY 2019-2020);
however, it is a significant increase compared to the AUF during bale fill operations (764 1b/cy
in FY 2013-2014). The District changed operations from a bale fill to an area fill in FY 2014-
2015.

LANDFILL CAPACITY

Based on the final cover contours included in the Lifetime Operating Permit Renewal
Application compared to the July 10, 2020, survey, the remaining waste capacity of the Lander
Landfill, as currently permitted, is 480,224 cubic yards. This remaining capacity does not
include final cover.

FUTURE AIR SPACE CONSUMPTION RATES AND SITE LIFE

The amount of waste that was landfilled at the Lander Landfill between the July 10, 2019, and
July 10, 2020, surveys was 31,829 tons.! This was the seventh year in which MSW from Sand
Draw and Riverton was diverted to Lander to maximize District landfill operations. The
following tonnages of waste have been received at the Lander Landfill since 2011:

» July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 = 15,066 tons

» July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 = 15,261 tons

» July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 = 13,517 tons

» July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 = 25,935 tons (began taking Sand Draw waste)
» July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 = 26,982 tons

» July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 = 28,115 tons

» July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 = 29,150 tons

» July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 = 39,856 tons

» July 10,2019 to July 10, 2020 = 31,829 tons

For purposes of calculating the remaining landfill life, future annual tonnage is assumed to
increase in quantity at a growth rate of 1%. Future waste disposal is estimated to be performed

! Included in the total tonnage landfilled between July 10, 2019, and July 10, 2020, is MSW (25,096 tons), C&D
(5,193 tons), asbestos (12 tons), animal wastes (250 tons), carcasses (11 tons), confidential records (3 tons),
biowastes (4 tons), and contaminated soil (1,261 tons). This tonnage data is from tonnage reports for the dates
between July 10, 2019, and July 10, 2020. Note that for purposes of calculating AUF, 10 tons of out-metals and
1,382 tons of yard waste that were received during this period were not included in the total tonnage because
materials are managed in areas of the landfill not included in the survey comparison calculations.



S
BURNS “’ISDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 3

at an airspace utilization factor equal to the average AUF for 2016-2020 (1,077 1b/cy). The
tonnage placed between the 2019-2020 survey dates was used for future tonnage projections
(31,829 tons).

Based on these assumptions, the Lander Landfill will reach capacity mid-year of 2028. The
attached Remaining Airspace Table presents the airspace utilization projections.

SOIL BALANCE

Soil balance calculations were completed by comparing the amount of soil required for landfill
operations to the amount of soil available onsite. The following summarizes the soil required
and available.

Soil Required

» Daily Cover Soil — The daily cover is assumed to be six percent of the waste mass. The
landfill predominantly uses a spray-on alternative daily cover in lieu of six-inches of
compacted soil for daily cover, which reduces the six-inches of soil cover requirement from
daily to every seven days.

Based on the remaining site life calculations discussed above, there is approximately 480,224
cubic yards of waste and daily cover airspace remaining. Approximately 29,000 cubic yards

of soil are needed for daily cover in the landfill operation, assuming the District continues to

use spray-on alternative daily cover in the same manner as currently being used.

» Intermediate Cover Soil — The landfill is required to have 12-inches of intermediate cover
over the waste mass prior to final cover. Approximately eight acres of the remaining 36 acres
that require final cover have intermediate cover already placed on them. The amount of
intermediate cover soil needed on the 28 acres requiring intermediate cover is 45,000 cubic
yards.

» Final Cover Soil — The amount of final cover soil required to close the landfill is estimated to
be 232,000 cubic yards based on the cover profile Lifetime Permit Renewal Application,
which includes 48-inches of lightly compacted classified fill over the 12-inches of
intermediate soil.

» Total Soil Requirements — The total soil requirement for the Lander Landfill for the remainder
of the site life through final closure is approximately 74,000 cubic yards of unclassified soil
for routine and intermediate cover, and approximately 232,000 cubic yards of classified soil
for final cover.

Soil Available

» Classified Soils — The Lifetime Operating Permit Renewal Application, January 25, 2018,
includes an estimate of the classified soils available in the borrow areas south and east of the
landfill. It estimates that 81% of the soils excavated, or 319,400 cubic yards, will meet
classified soil specification.



S
BURNS wsDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 4

» Unclassified Soils —~The classified soils area mentioned in the bullet above will have
approximately 75,000 cubic yards of unclassified soils within it. There is also an estimated
4,000 cubic yards of unclassified soil that can be excavated from the hill west of the loadout
area. Therefore, the estimated total unclassified soils available is 79,000 cubic yards.

The classified and unclassified soils referenced in this section are from borrow areas located
south and east of the landfill on adjacent Army National Guard property. Discussions of
using these soils for landfill purposes have been had with the Army National Guard; however,
formal approval is still required. It is anticipated that it will take several years to gain
appropriate approvals to use the soils from this area — thus, planning should begin early for the
final cover construction.

Soil Balance

» Based on the estimates and assumptions provided above, the Lander Landfill appears to have
sufficient soils available onsite. There is a surplus of 87,000 cubic yards of classified soil, and
a surplus of 5,000 cubic yards of unclassified soil to be excavated onsite.

CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE COST ESTIMATES

Burns & McDonnell completed cost estimates for closure and post-closure management of the
Lander Landfill. The estimated present value of the closure cost for the Landfill is $2,719,660,
which is an increase of $53,220 compared to 2019. The estimated present value of the post
closure cost estimate is $3,005,560, which is an inflationary increase of $58,730 compared to
2019. The post-closure cost estimate is based on an assumed 30-year post-closure period. The
closure and post closure cost estimates are attached.

It should be noted that Federal EPA guidelines require states to enforce a minimum 30-year post
closure period. It is likely that post-closure will extend beyond 30-years — although at a lower
cost. For post-closure to come to an end the landfill needs to be stable and not producing
leachate and/or landfill gas at significant levels that warrant monitoring. For comparison, the
post-closure cost of 50-years, assuming a 75% reduction in annual post-closure costs due to
reduced sampling and property management costs for years 31- 50, is $3,506,487.



\
BURNS wEDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 5

CLOSING

Should you have any questions regarding this letter report, please do not hesitate to contact Matt
Evans at 952-656-3629 or at maevans@burnsmcd.com.

Sincerely,

Burns & McDonnell

M |

Matthew J. Evang/ PE
Project Manager



Tables



LANDER LANDFILL-2020 REMAINING AIRSPACE

Lander-Waste Received Tonnage (07/10/19 to 07/10/20) =
Predicted Future Generation Growth =

Aispace Utilization Factor (AUF)’=

Remaining Capacity (without final cover) =

Remaining Airspace Table

Year Total Tonnage Annual Airspace
(Lander) Consumed (cy)
2020 15,173 | 28,168
2021 32,148 59,679
2022 32,469 60,276
2023 32,794 60,879
2024 33,122 61,488
2025 33,453 62,103
2026 33,788 62,724
2027 34,125 63,351
2028 34,467 63,984
2029 34,811 64,624
2030 35,159 65,270
2031 35,511 65,923
2032 35,866 66,582
2033 36,225 67,248
2034 36,587 67,921
2035 36,953 68,600
2036 37,323 69,286
2037 37,696 69,979
2038 38,073 70,679
Notes:

Remaining
Capacity (cy)

452,056
392,376
332,100
271,221
209,733
147,631
84,907
21,556
-42,428
-107,052
-172,323
-238,246
-304,828
-372,077
-439,997
-508,597
-577,883
-647,862
-718,541

DATE: 10/29/2020

31,829|tons

1%

1,077|lb/cy

480,224 |cy

<== Capacity Reached in 2028

1. Prior to luly 1, 2014, MSW and C&D waste were placed in two separate areas of the permitted waste footprint of the Landfill. All waste is now

being combined and disposed in one location.

2. Waste from Sand Draw will be diverted to the Lander Landfilll until capacity is reached at Lander.

3. The average AUF used to calculte remaining airspace excluded values from 2019 due to the abnomrally high amount of C&D wastes received.

Z:\Clients\ENS\FCSWD\125750_2020-2021Srvcs\Support\Data\2020 Capacity Audits\Lander\Spreadsheets\20201020 2020 Airspace Utilization

Fremont County - Lander



Closure Cost Estimate

Lander Landfill
Item No. Line Item Est Qty. Unit * Unlt Price ded Price Description
ilization & | Site Pr ion
1 Mobilization, Demobilization, Bonding, Insurance a % 1,691,220 135,300 Judgement includes clearing, grubbing, construction
2 Construction BMPs {erosion & Sediment Controls) 5 % 1,691,220 84,560 Judgement; includes plan, silt fence, checks, surfacing
3 Minor Road Improvements 5 DAY 2330 11,650 Judgement; includes one heavy piece of equipment and ane
operator.
$231,510
Site Grading and Associated Earthwork
4 Grade intermediate cover 36 ACRE 1,710 61,560 Judgement based on similar projects
$61,560
Final Cover
5 Excavate anchor trenches i o 6.05 : HC(.ZD 3123 16.13 0062; 3/4 CY excavator; includes labor and
equipment
6 Purchase and install geomembrane - SF 0.63 = ludgement, 60-mil LLDPE geomembrane includes installation
7 Purchase and install geocompasite drainage layer - SF 0.63 Judgement, biplanar geocomposite includes installation

8 Backfill anchor trench = v 190 - HCCD 31 .23 16.13 3080; Backfill trench, FE Loader 2-1/4 CY
bucket, min haul

9 Compacted backfilled anchor trench - cY 2.03 - :;2?63..1‘;;2;;:5;?0; Ik Dehineyibra e pIRIEUTE)]
10 Load, haul, and place final cover soil from on-site stockpile 232,000 cy 6.12 1,419,840 Judgement based on similar projects
$1,419,840
Site Reclamation
11 Grade disturbed areas 39 ACRE 1,717 66,950 HCCD 31 22 16.10 3300; all disturbed areas
12 Revegetate 1,698,840 SF 0.08 138,630 Judgement; similar projects, includes soil amendments
$205,580
Miscellaneous
13 Survey Control and As-Built documentation 1.0 LS 4,240 4,240 WDEQ SWG #12 worksheet
$4,240
Engineering and Construction Management
14 Engineering and Bid Administration 5% LS 1,922,730 96,140 Judgement, assumes 5% of construction cost
15 Construction Quality Assurance 10% LS 1,922,730 192,270 Judgement, assumes 10% of construction cost
16 Construction Management 8% LS 1,922,730 153,820 Judgement, assumnes 8% of construction cost
SUBTOTAL $442,230
SUBTOTAL 2,364,960
CONTINGENCY 15% 354,700
TOTAL CLOSURE COSTS $2,719,660

ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITATIONS
Pricing is for 2020 present value unless otherwise noted.
Extended prices are rounded to the nearest $10.

N

*Units:

AC = acre

CY = cubic yard
DAY = day

€A = each

LF =linear foot
LS = lump sum
SF = square foot
SY = square yard
YR = year

HCCD = RSMeans Heavy Construction Cost Data, 2010; adjusted for inflation
Judgement - Professional judgement or estimation by Burns & McDonnell



Post-Closure Cost Estimate

Lander Landfill
Item No. Line Item Est Qty. Unit * Unit Price Extended Price Description
1 Recordkeeping 30 YR 3,710 111,300 Judgement
2 Post-closure site Inspections 30 YR 860 25,800 WDEQ SWG #12, adjusted for inflation
3 Methane Monitoring 30 YR 1,590 47,700 Judgement, based on similar projects
4 Groundwater Monitoring 30 YR 36,610 1,098,300 2014 environmental monitoring contract
Judgement; includes sample fees, consultant fees, travel expense,
Operation of the groundwater/leachate collection equipment, supplies, and reporting - decreased from previous
5 system 30 YR 31,410 942,300 years due to leachate management operations change.
Judgement (ave 0.5 PLS @ 160, 8 hr GPS tech @$100, 0.5hr data
6 Survey Control for settlement documentation 30 DAY 1,260 37,800 mgr @5$100, $100 OCDs per day) one per year
7 Petition to terminate post-closure period 1 LS 3,710 3,710 Judgement
ludgement; includes routine maintenance, revegetation of bare
8 Grounds maintenance 30 YR 3,710 111,300 spots
9 Drainage Channel maintenance costs 30 YR 3,710 111,300 ludgement
10 Fence Maintenance Costs 6800 LF 14 95,110 WDEQ SWG #12, adjusted for inflation
11 Fence Removal Costs 6800 LF 2 15,880 WDEQ SWG #12, adjusted for inflation
12 Groundwater monitoring well abandonment 19 EA 630 11,970 ludgement, based on similar projects
Judgement based on previous experience with probe
13 Methane probe abandonment 2 EA 530 1,060 abandonment
SUBTOTAL] 2,613,530
CONTINGENCY 15% 352,030
TOTAL POST-CLOSURE COSTS 3,005,560

ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITATIONS

1 Pricing is for 2020 present value unless otherwise noted.

2 Extended prices are rounded to the nearest $10.

*Units:

DAY = day

EA = each

LF = linear foot
LS = lump sum
YR = year

Judgement - Professional judgement or estimation by Burns & McDonnell

SWG - Solid Waste Guideline

WDEQ - Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality




Figures



e e e T R

Wy = T .:.n.n_..-m.. _ b1 v N//r

—_— — — — ! \ —_— —
Y — L 3¥uN9I4 — — P———————— = — - e ——— — |I‘I ..| - = —~ y Ll / C—
e e — === N\
oszszL | e, e e e T %
sesue sofaxd |em T =T e = e — e
s z A\ X
SNOLLIONOD ONILSIXE 0202 U I S 2 S N
ALNNOD INOWINA 7 S~ N f/
\ —— N
\ i \
-
e \ . P /
vissIq fesodsig AXeMm PIOS p g 2%
Aunod uowaly N | ~-
—
/ ; = \ A¥VONNCS
\ 7 .._............ \_‘ LGV 051N
AL "
SNYAZ W . \ 4 / Al
ooz peurtap N /
IVHILYANHSY 'S 0202 ¥380L00 | .,_.f /
s a=p . 1l 0 ~\
N S =
—
Jdmzzgmz/ -~
SNaing \
A"
N\
\ VEHY WECHR
\ i
\ - {
SUNOLNOD ONLSIXE - - \
AMVONNOE ALHAONd s | 1
AMVANNOE A3ANNS = s " _ \— | -— e .’
\ T )~
@ il 42 g’ \% N K
ST13M ONIIOLINOW \ e e = ONITDADIN
Q Y e e e e e e F I e T /:.Pl. < \EYY LT
| —— ——e —— = ubl\\ —— e e @ | \ 1 l........rl T ITAATded
ANYONNOB 31SYM == == == ! N - i L4 74 | ........f
_ iy = s N N ——
] ¥ .Q.-l - g T sy
! 3 . 5
soNIaTIing @ Iy [ B N ' s Y
1 A s =,
Py __ o I . ‘ r |
savoy /R | 1\ VIV SOt ) \
| T340 LHHISIO | AN sFn A
K 1 / A [ | S -
aN93T fixy il | WSOHI0 SUS¥M ONDE 1 _ ¥ — N .Q
_ 't = P i g Py T _ GHOEOF A X
WS0dSIa e | "~ ! 7 -~ t
31SVM ONY ‘ONINId®OOLS | X L { P e e e \ —~—— N = MWORNDR ABABNS \
‘NOILYAYOXZ TVId3 LYW H3A0D [ = R \ S _ -
NOILOMYLSNOD SHINMO OL | &a..i PN = =N e = \ o / pe s
3NA AYVA AVW AHIVHDO0dOL LS 2 \ e SR Er— \ S \ \
| P T = L= A\ N
AJAMNS 0202 '€2 HITWI LIS (1l ¢l f N\ N "
Q3INH0LYId AIAYNS TYNOLLIOAY |34 o < N N / R
NO QISVE SI ANVANNOE Ir i \ SR AN
AIAMNS 0202 ‘0L AW 2HL IAISLNO [ i [ NN N N
AHAVHDOJOL ‘0202 ‘0L AT 3HL ' s o o ~ Sof g 7
NO U3SVE 1 AHAVHO0dOL 3LS L} = — — =N y ~ % _ us R R %
. e T B = it - - N
53108 AR = ~ B - NN
— T
LAl ﬁf/__ _ ll.qﬁ /. ~ = i .ll.-..tl- ~ /; J(
|3rw | ds jozeeoy v 1 YA ) — = = SN /
_ [ ] / \ I~ NN 4
uopdpasep | pys | Aq | mep [oe 3 “7/ | .f.,.,..f e
113 ZL i ol L3




— . SNOMIATM — HIAODIVNIF INILIAITABO T hd | duestle pin s pp ONINOAM ‘ALNNOD INOWINA 0 A3y
[n::;q ) T — B EY ot wos| S TULANYT NIANY
Mgy ] RanvosaaNT Y wirsens | NOILYOIMddY LINYId ONILYHIO IWILIIN o~
= 2102/2eZL Jlva N
1ILONTT NILL 38nsvan W Qs
1ON $300 V8 SIHL 1 S_IAG OIoAD NYId 83A0D TYNI4 "
VA AN Y

R W \
W \\\ RN
\ \\‘\\:\ \\

A
N

...,“\

\
\

L
AT %‘.“'-"'\“";\.\R{x\ﬁ*ﬁ'\,‘%"\lﬂ.\ A '
i \.'\‘-\.I A \“\‘\\\Q\ \'\\' l":\."\ Jze / i
8
A AV i
|
"‘?‘-S:'\‘ I \ i W
_': “\ \ \II'I\\k'S{\\\\\\%\\ \ W{I
\
A

A-‘ \ l_ H I:I \\ w‘& \\\ I\\
¥, ol \ . \ I :, I
‘ 1: '“\I\' \ \I\I\\\E:' \\ \:\;\k\ \ X \ ":I' I
AN “

\ V! i
A \\\\\ i
A \‘\~
NN “\}\\-N N
_ &\\\*ﬁ L \\
\

AR
LT
\\\\

A
.‘R

AN
A "::\\\.‘.3“-

e A e ‘t . |
_— _a:!" W A . //_,F-»_ g-:-eﬁ "d‘-‘L;‘
i : 2 = e
’;/ e!f . SJ""".
T/ ;'I: \I{\ - /




"= e e e e 15 W

W0 v [ [
v w— € 34NoId
‘Al Buwwatio
051524
10100 lad

(A3AYNS 6102 WIA0 AIAYNS 0202)
3OVdSHIV GIWNSNOD 0202

ALNNGD LNOW3HS

Fue i

US| jesodsig d1sem PIOS

Auno) uowal4 o

SNVAI W
PaREE |
NYW3IL O 020Z ¥38OLO0

PHIAG den

TIINNOGSW\\
SNUNE S

SYNOLNOD ONILSIX3

AYVANNOS AL¥IO¥d — ==—

AYVANNOE ASAMNS  — —
STI3M DNIHOLINOW .3

AYVONNOH LSV  w e e

soNIaTIng
savod

aN3oa
SAAVYA DIEND = AD
Q¥3Z L3N

T ————

1ng
‘HOVHOS)

1004-CMmL
3AV STYAYILNI BNOLNOD €

AIAMNS 0207 'vZ YIBWI LIS

JHL WO¥4 S| AMvaNNCH

ASANNS 0202'0L ATNF THL
30ISLNO NMOHS AHAVEDO0dCL 2

AINUNS
6102 '0L AINr 3HL ONY A3ANNS 0202
0L ATNF IHL N33MLIB T4/LND IHL
SINISIHIZN NMOHS HOVOSI IHL |

‘S3LON

(4nv 804 Q3SNXTTI4) AD 00061
Vauvy CALYAVIGE -

P
3NV 3 OIS T AD 166 FC L
AD DZC0F TYIA

ADOEEE

W3R THL FMIOY

Arw| Leo [EERR ¥

wanduzzap pw3 | Aq | aep |ow

WY

y | ousvmowes —
i P

\ Fd g

330440 101510

WEOHSID 3L5VM OVI06

ALNNOD INOWIYS

- (1N AD POZ L (13N
ADLZ0h T4
ADSBZR LMD

Lv3v 1No
———
i\ N
- SNTIADTH — Waifd
- r ,.u\ Iu.l.!ll..l....r
f
G h___
S Ji
=y T N
| J —=
[ "
LR VIRV 44C-d0HT
v ANy
_. —
Iy o T
\ ~
] § o
\
-’
\
//
O
N
NN
NN
o
s B
N
G
o

=l
an inoavel
A IAVHOVE
A
- AN
/,., "
e
] S
o [
|
"
S

LY

S DTz A
\ S AHYONMOR ASANNE

T

ot



e e e T 1]

N
Sttt ¥ [ ) W TN
\ —
v - v 3uNoL4 hY = = -
“ads Gulmeip ——— —
oseses b
pataues 13aloed A

1 A3AMNS 0202 ¥IAO0 ¥3A0D Tvmina!
ONINIVWIY 3DVSHIV 0202

R
ALNNOD LNOWIHS \
Lt
Jo
puIsIa [esodsig 215em plIoS x
Auno) juowayy - /
oy
e
ASVANNOS /
SNYAT W - ~ 31SYM A3 LIIWY3d
— e poulinap
NVWIIL O 0202 ¥3I80100
posiTIen ojep |

TIINNOGSW\\
SNANEN

SHNOLNCD ONILSIX3

AYVANNOB ALHId0dd = ===

AYYANNOE ASANNS

e

fraie 4] 1Noavo

JLVHOVAT

S

STIIM ONINOLINOW $

AGYONNOE SLSYM e e e

sONaTng 1550’

[f24 (TN A0 vz ogp

A0 126015

savos Y »unwﬂon
{aN3931

SOHYA DI8ND = AD

oY3Z 13N —

— VARV
N MOHHOE

T

T

: - — 2 WEHY LI 4
1no = e TR w Lyl T wm @ | \.\ L N R - @ 1 /
— L\

L]
L}
oG] _ 3/ — & 4 - | “, ./.;.......ll.“u\ } {

10S 031ASSY1D F
40 SIHONIF8Y S 311J0Ud | I
YIA0D WNI4 QILLANIL IHL G

» [ 5 FSNOH r "
| | - ~ AW A Y VIV BTE0N0 0
SIWMTOA ¥IACD I ) s 1 vph arng T

I0H440 LUULSID
YN NTONI |
13 30NTONI LON 00 SINNTOA ¥ (. _ WSO 3 1SV 105 \
- I ALNICD ANCIGHS — . NS ™~
E m4<>mmhzw%%mhw>0>w £ | 535 / | ~~ - £/ / 1 \ ~ / 0202 0L ATNM \
_ - L ] { .\.\\_\ - ! \ —_ AHYANNOB ASAUNS
A3AHNS 0202 '¥Z ¥IBNILJ3S _ . B E
3HL WOX4 S| AMVONNOE | 3 /
AIAYNS 0Z0Z'0L AINF 3HL i e = —— - ”
JAISLNO NMOHS AHJVND0dOL 2 \ YT ] [ \

AJAENS 0202 ‘0L | |
ATNF IHL ONY SHMOLNOD 3LSVM it ol T h
30 dOL NI FHL NIIMLIS !
TULLND IHL SINISTYSTY I F
NMOHS HOVAOSI 3HL L ~ -
1

PZZaR AN

_.—-__-_77&___--—/-._—_.

| 3rw| 1ropera v i

i
‘§3LON I o
N |
R\
[

.
M
/
IJ"'
/
/
L\
)
Ve

vopduasap | pwo | Aq | sen ou




Shoshoni Landfill
2019-2020 Capacity Audit



Memorandum
Date:  March 26, 2021
To:

From:

BURNSQMSDONNELL

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District Board of Directors

Matt Evans, Burns & McDonnell

Subject: Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District — Operations Summary

This memorandum presents the following:

Summary of the District’s financial position

Summary of projected expenses and revenues
Long-term closure/post-closure financial responsibilitics
Landfill operation metrics

Financial Position

The following table summarizes the key financial considerations for the four District facilities.

Closure /
a Post Closure
2019- | Projected Closure “Immediate” Post- Post- Future | Future
Site 2020 Closure Cost Closure Closure Closure | Development Development
AUF Year Cost (30-yr) (50-yr) (2021-2041) Fu;’ d
(Ibslyd?) Balance
Lander 1,098 2028 $2,719,660 | $2,702,000 | $3,005,560 | $3,506,487 | $5,041,346 -
2054
g?;\z 1,029 (active | $3,522,610 | $5,902,610 | $2,808,610 | $3,276,712 | $1,291,346 -
area)
Shoshoni N/A 2021 $1,319,210 |  $217,000 $575,760 | $670,553 $0 -
Dubois 542 2075 $311,970 | $1,323210 | $813,530 | $949,118 | $3,105,208 -
Total $7,873,450 | $10,144,820 | $7,203,460 | $8,402,870 | $9,437,899 | $ 16,466,876




Memorandum (cont’d) BURNSQMEDONNELL

March 26, 2021
Page 2

The 10-year financial projection for the District is presented in the following figure.

District 10-Year Financial Projection

$18,000,000
516' 000,000 =i LanderL:::(alllclnsed —" \
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
wn
] 2023
‘=‘ $10,000,000 Lander Transfer Statlon Construction: 2.5M
[} Lander Landflll Site Improvements: 0.7M 2025
(=] Other Cons\: 100k Lander Leachate Treatment 2080
v Front End Loader: 300k System: 1M 2028 Lander Landilll
=] Blade: 200k Other Const: 400k Scraper: 700k Closure:3 1M
$8,000,000 : cn?n«:::;%m é:fl:;’ggg:
s . ade: a%
: ,.. Roll-off Truck: 200k Other Equip: 100k i -_.
ss'ooo'ooo -."o -'.. ."- -'.. '-.-.".. ..-'-..."-.' a"' .'-.
‘-—;'::"s-—.l';---o——————.-.u----.&"--- ______ e L TP PR T -——-.'ﬂ-u':--""'"‘"""'--:'f
$4,000,000 ’
$2,000,000
$0
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
=« o0 Projected Expenses = = = Projected Revenue w— Fund Balance Closure /Post-Closure Liability

The information shown on the figure corresponds to the following.

e Projected Expenses: Total labor, general operating, equipment purchases, and
construction expenses.

e Projected Revenue: Total revenue from fees, mill levy, auto tax and all other forms of
District revenue.

e [Fund Balance: District bank account that is set aside for landfill closure, post-closure and
other large District construction projects.

o Annual Construction and Equipment Expenses: Large construction and equipment
expenses are summarized in boxes corresponding to the year of the expense.

Expenses and Revenues
The projected expenses and revenues for the District are summarized on the following Figure:



Memorandum (cont’d) BURNSQMEDONNELL

March 26, 2021
Page 3
District Projected Revenues and Expenses
2023
Lander Transfer Stallon Constructlon: 2.5M
Lander Landflll Site improvements: 0.7M
Other Canst: 100k 2025 Landgrof:ndﬁll
58,000,000 FrontBEIr;:t?;g;: 300k Lnnderl;vii::f;’:ﬂealment b
Other Const: 400k YT
Dozer: 600k
Compactor: 600k Scraper: 700k
$7,000,000 Roll-off Truck: 200k l;;z;;ggg:
Other Equip: 100k
$6,000,000
L $5,000,000 e i
: \Y
8
" $4,000,000
= ‘————“"—_‘—4_——”
$3,000,000‘_____*______“ e e g === e S e == - =~ =4
[ S ¢ '
$2,000,000 = “—l--ss--I-é——-—-—--————-l———--—--,-i\ -——— - - f--=--N
4
) 7 LS - & o :
% -~ Fa 4 b
$1,000,000 s 9/ A P \L 7 .
~ . - i \
- PN
e - S~y R -0
S0 LS S rare .-
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Construction -~ Equipment — ¢ General Expenses —o—Total Expenses
-~ & Fees Revenue —-= Mill Levy Revenue =x=Total Revenue

The information on the figure above corresponds to the following.

e Construction: Anticipated schedule and costs of all District construction project. Major

construction projects are summarized in the boxes within the figure.

e Equipment: Anticipated replacement dates and costs of all District equipment. Major
equipment replacements are summarized in the boxes within the figure.
e General Expenses: Labor, general operating, fuel, insurance and all other non-

construction and non-equipment replacement expenses.

e Total Expenses: Sum of construction, equipment, and general expenses.

e Fees Revenue: Revenue from tipping fees and other customer charges (e.g., confidential

disposal charges, tarp fees, etc.).



Memorandum (cont’d) BURNS &EDONNELL

March 26, 2021
Page 4

e Mill Levy Revenue: Mill levy and auto tax revenue. Note that it is assumed that mill levy
revenue in 2022 will be approximately $200,000 less than 2021 and then hold at that
amount through the remainder of the projection period.

e Total Revenue: Sum of fee revenue and mill levy revenue.

Long-Term Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities
The District’s four landfills have significant closure and post-closure expenses. The following
summarizes the anticipated amount and timing of those expenses.

Closure and Post-Closure Costs

Projected Closure Cost Post-Closure Costs Post-Closure Costs
Closure Date (30-year total) (50-year total)
Dubois 2075 $311,970 $813,530 $949,118
Lander 2028 $2,719,660 $3,005,560 $3,506,487
Sand Draw 2054 $3,522,610 $2,808,610 $3,276,712
Shoshoni 2021 $1,319,210 $575,760 $670,553
Total Liability $7,873,450 $7,203,460 $8,402,870

Note: All costs are Present Value (2020).

The District’s total closure and post-closure liability, assuming a 30-year closure period, is
$15,076,910. If the post-closure period were to extend to 50-years, the total liability increases to
$16,276,320. Costs to be incurred during the post-closure period include groundwater
monitoring, erosion control, fencing, reporting, and other activities necessary to maintain the
landfills after their closed and before they are stable enough to stop monitoring.




Memorandum (¢cont’d)

March 26, 2021

Page 5

Land(fill Operation Metrics
The following table summarizes the landfill metrics for each of the four landfills for the 2019-

8
BURNS N’ISDONNELL

2020 fiscal year.
2019 — 2020 Landfill Metrics
Tons Volume Airspace Utilization | Remaining Volume Soil Balance
Disposed Consumed | (Ibs. per cubic yard) (cubic yards) (cubic yards)
(cubic yards)
Dubois 578 2,132 542 186,714 99,000
Lander 31,829 57,991 1,098 480,224 92,000
Sand Draw 3,653 7,104 1,029 2,364,051 341,790
Shoshoni! NA 12,854 NA 5,864 29,700
Notes:

1. Shoshoni landfill does not have a scale. All waste received is measured in volume. All three other landfills weigh
waste received prior to disposal.

2. Soil batance is the net volume of soil available onsite for all future landfill operations. All four landfills are in a
surplus situation.

NA = Not Applicable

Ibs = pounds

The following summarizes the information presented in the table above.
Tons Disposed: The weighed amount of waste disposed of in the landfill during the audited year.
Volume Consumed: The airspace consumed in the landfill during the audited year.

Airspace Utilization: An industry standard metric for measuring the efficiency of filling
operations. The higher the airspace utilization the longer the more waste that can be disposed of
in the landfill footprint; thus, extending the life of the landfill and delaying construction of a new
landfill. A good landfill operation maintains an airspace utilization between 1,000 and 1,200 lbs
per cubic yard. Lower airspace utilizations can occur at construction and demolition debris
landfills (e.g., the Dubois Landfill) due to the bulky nature of the waste received.

Remaining Volume: The remaining permitted airspace in the landfill at the end of the audited
year.

Soil Balance: The volume of onsite soil that can be used for cover operations less the amount of
soil that is needed for cover operations.

Closing
Additional details, including assumptions, are included in the annual landfill capacity reports.
Figures and tables used to complete landfill calculations are also included.



BURNS &MEDONNELL

February 10, 2021

Mr. Andrew Frey, P.E.

Superintendent

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
P.O. Box 1400

Lander, WY 82520

Re: FY 2019-2020 Capacity Audit for Shoshoni Landfill, Fremont County, Wyoming
Dear Mr. Frey:

Burns & McDonnell has completed volume and airspace utilization calculations for the Shoshoni
Landfill in accordance with Authorization No. 28 dated June 20, 2020. The calculations are
based on comparing the July 10, 2020, survey, completed by William H. Smith & Associates,
Inc., to the July 12, 2019, survey and the Proposed 2020 Closure Plan grades included in the
May 3, 2018, Closure Permit Application prepared by Trihydro Corporation.

Attached are drawings showing the existing conditions, final cover plan (Closure Permit
Application), and the cut/fill depths between 2019 and 2020 surveys and the final cover contours.
The figures include:

» Figure 1 — 2020 Existing Conditions
Figure 2 — Final Cover Plan (Proposed 2020 Closure Plan- Trihydro)

v

» Figure 3 — 2020 Consumed Airspace ( 2020 Survey over 2019 Survey)
» Figure 4 — 2020 Remaining Airspace (Final Cover Compared to 2020 Survey)

Also attached are tables showing the projected closure and post-closure costs for the Landfill.

AIRSPACE CONSUMPTION

The airspace consumed between the July 12, 2019, and July 10, 2020, surveys is approximately
12,854 cubic yards (cy). This value is approximately 22% lower than the volume from the
previous year, at 16,551 cy which was the result of a large demolition project in the area. Both
volumes of airspace consumed for 2019 and 2020 were significantly higher than the volumes
reported for 2016, 2017 and 2018, with an average volume of 5,375 cy. The landfill’s airspace
utilization factor (i.e. pounds of weight placed per cubic yard of airspace consumed) was not
calculated because waste is not weighed prior to placement at the Shoshoni Landfill. Customers
are charged based on the volume of waste being disposed.

8201 Norman Center Drive \ Suite 300 \ Bloomington, MN 55437
0 952-656-6003 \ F 952-229-2923 \ burnsmed.com



BURNS &VE.DONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10,2021
Page 2

LANDFILL CAPACITY

Based on the final cover contours shown on Figure 2 compared to the July 10, 2020, survey, the
remaining airspace (waste plus routine cover) capacity in the existing trench at the Shoshoni
Landfill is 5,864 cubic yards. This capacity does not include final cover or intermediate cover.

The District plans to close the Shoshoni Landfill in 2021.

Soil Required

Soil balance calculations were completed by comparing the amount of soil required for landfill
operations and closure to the amount of soil available onsite. The following summarizes the soil
required, available, and balance between required and available.

» Routine Cover Soil — Assuming the waste to routine cover soil ratio is 10:1, the approximate
amount of routine cover soil used in FY 2019-2020 was 1,169 cubic yards. If the landfill
ceases waste acceptance in the fall of 2020 in preparation for final closure, the amount of
routine cover soil needed is approximately 130 cubic yards. Additionally, 4,438 cubic yards
of soil will be needed to achieve closure grades.

» Intermediate Cover Soil — The landfill is required to have one foot of intermediate cover over
the waste mass prior to final cover. Assuming all areas except the active trench area already
have intermediate cover, approximately 3,227 cubic yards of intermediate cover soil is needed
prior to closure.

» Final Cover Soil — The cover profile included in the May 3, 2018, Closure Permit Application,
includes 6-inches of topsoil, 18-inches of protective soil layer zone, a geocomposite drainage
layer, a 40-mil linear low-density polyethylene (LLDPE) geomembrane liner, and a
geocomposite gas venting layer over a 15-acre closure area. Final cover will be placed over
the existing trench, as well as over the in-place waste located east of the trench. The amount
of soil needed to cover the area requiring final closure is 48,400 cubic yards, including 12,100
cubic yards of topsoil and 36,300 cubic yards of soil for the protective soil layer zone.

» Total Soil Requirements — The total soil requirement for the Shoshoni Landfill for the
remainder of the site life is approximately 55,094 cubic yards.

o Routine and Intermediate Cover: 3,256 cubic yards

o Soil Required to Achieve Closure Grade: 4,438 cubic yards
o Topsoil: 11,000 cubic yards

o Protective Soil Layer: 36,300 cubic yards



S
BURNS NflEDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 3

Soil Availahle

Existing Soil Stockpiles — The 2018 surveys identified two areas of stockpiles totaling 63,800
cubic yards of soil. After use as routine cover, the stockpiles currently have a capacity of 48,800
cubic yards of soil.

Soil Borrow Areas — Two soil borrow areas are included in the Closure Permit Application plans,
located near the northeast and northwest corners of the property. For planning purposes, it is
estimated that the two borrow areas have a combined soil volume of 25,000 cubic yards
assuming the areas are excavated approximately four feet deep. It is assumed these soils would
be unclassified soils not suitable for topsoil.

Soil Balance

Based on the estimated soil required and the soil available described above, there is a surplus of
approximately 29,700 cubic yards of unclassified fill, and a surplus of approximately 600 cubic
yards of topsoil.

CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE COST ESTIMATES

The closure and post-closure care costs have been calculated based on the final cover design
included in the approved May 3, 2018, Closure Permit Application, prepared by Trihydro
Corporation. The estimated present value of the closure cost for the Landfill is $1,319,210. The
estimated present value of the post-closure cost is $574,760. The post-closure cost estimate is
based on an assumed 30-year post-closure period. The closure and post closure cost estimates
are attached.

It should be noted that Federal EPA guidelines require states to enforce a minimum 30-year post
closure period. It is likely that post-closure will extend beyond 30-years — although at a lower
cost. For post-closure to come to an end the landfill needs to be stable and not producing
leachate and/or landfill gas at significant levels that warrant monitoring. For comparison, the
post-closure cost of 50-years, assuming a 75% reduction in annual post-closure costs due to
reduced sampling and property management costs for years 31- 50, is $670,553.



\
BURNS “’ISDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 4

CLOSING

Should you have any questions regarding this letter report, please do not hesitate to contact Matt
Evans at 952-656-3629 or at maevans@burnsmcd.com.

Sincerely,
Burns & McDonnell

/Va%h/ G

Matthew J. Evans, PE
Civil Engineer



Tables



A1|enD |euawuoJiAug o Juawiedaq SujwoAm - DIAM
aui|apinD 31sep\ PlIOS - OMS
ysiepm weymo Aq uonewlss Jo Juawadpnl |BUOISS340.d - Juswadpnr

JeahA = YA
wns dwn| =57
1004 Jeaul| = {1

yoes =y3

Aep = Av@

SHUMN

‘0TS 152JE3U 3Y] 0] papunod ale sad1d papusixy
"pajou 3sIMIBYIO SSIJUN anjeA uasasd 0Zog 404 s Supiid T
SNOILVLIINIT 8@ SNOILdINNSSY

09L'vLS S1SOD 3WNSO13-1S0d Tv¥101

0L6'7L %S1T ADN3IDNILNOD

06.'661 viotdns

510ds aleq JO uolIe1a8aAal ‘BoUBUIIUIBW BUIINOJ S3PN|aUl luawWadpnf 00Z‘vE OvT'T YA o€ 9IUBUUIBW SPUNOID 0T
uoinejjul 1o} parsnipe ‘ZT# DMS DIAM  000°L 4 11 000€ $150) |eAOWSY dUa4 6
uoneyjul Joj paisnipe ‘ZT# OMS DIAM 096'TY 14" 41 000€ $150)D 3JUBUSIUIBIA 3dU3S 8
1uawuopueqe aqoid yiim a3ualiadxs snolaald uo paseq uawaspnr QZy'E 0LS Vi3 9 1USWIUOpUBQY 300.d SUeYIdA £
juawaspnr 0TZE TotL’s sl 1 pouad 3insoj2-1s0d 21EUILIIRY O] UOITNAd g
JedA yad auo (Aep 4ad sQD0 00TS 009°9€ 0T Avdad o€ UO(1BIUSWNION JUIWI|N3S 40} [041U0D) ASAINS §
‘00TS®@ 43welep JYs'o ‘00TS® Y231 SdD 44 8 ‘09T @ S1d §°0 dAe) Judwaspnf

SuliolUOW J31BMPUNOIS 10} 19BIIUOI [RIUBWUONAUS $TOZ 008°06T T09g€'9 ¥A o€ BurioliUOA J1BMpPUNOID 7
109(0ud Jejiwis uo paseq ‘uswaspnr 00L vy 06¥'1T HA 0 BuuolUOA BUBYIBIA €
uonejul Joy paisnipe ‘ZT# DS DIAM  00T'9¢C 0.8 HA [o]3 SU01303dsul 3MUS 31nSO|I-350d 7
wawadpnf Q0E'TTT TotZ'eE ¥A O€ Suidaaspioday T

uondiuiasag 2dlid papuaixy  adud uun « HUN ‘AlD 153 widyj aur "ON w3}

IypuE] 1UoYsoys
31ew}sy 150D 2Jns0|)-1504




Closure Cost Estimate
Shoshoni Landflll

Item No, Line Item Est Qty. Unit * Unit Price Price Description
Mobillzation & General Site Preparation
1 Mobilization, Demobilization, Bonding, Insurance 5 % 981,700 49,090.00 Judgement includes clearing, grubbing, construction
2 Construction BMPs (erosion & Sediment Controls} § % 981,700 49,100,00 Jjudgement; includes plan, silt fence, checks, surfacing
3 Minar Road Improvements o DAY 2,270.00 2,270.00 Judgement; includes one heavy piece of equipment and one operator.
100,460.00
Site Grading and Assaclated Earthwork
4 Grade intermediate cover 15 ACRE 1,710 25,650,.00 Judgement based on similar projects
25,650.00
Final Cover
5 Load, haul, and place final cover soil from on-site stockpile 48,400 cy 510 246,840.00 Judgement based on similar projects
* Geocomposite drainage layer (above geomembrane) 187,630 SF 0.70 131,340.00 Based on recent project bids ($0.76/sf for BASWA for slightly heavier bi-planar)
* 40 mil LLDPE geomembrane liner 653,400 SF 050 326,700.00 Based on recent project bids (CWC)
* Geocomposite gas venting layer {below geomembrane) 181,830 SF 0.70 127,28000 Based on recent project bids ($0.76/sf for BASWA for slightly heavier bi-planar)
832,160.00
Site Reclamation
6 Revegetate 1,100,000 SF 0.08 87,550,00 Judgement based on similar projects, includes soil amendments
7 Grade disturbed areas 9 ACRE 1,71000 15,390.00 Judgement based on similar projects
102,940.00
Miscellaneous
8 Survey Control and As-Built documentation 10 DAY 4,290 4,240.00 WDEQSWG H12
9 Barbed Wire Fence 5,600 LF 5.00 28,000.00 Barbed wire fencing to be placed at property boundary
10 Fence Removal 5,500 LF 1.00 5,500,00 Existing fence removal
4,240.00
ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
11 Bid Administration 1% LS 1,082,200 10,820.00 Estimate
12 Construction Quality Assurance 2.5% LS 1,082,200 27,060,00 Estimate
13 Construction Management 25% Ls 1,082,200 27,060.00 Estimate
SUBTOTAL 64,940.00
SUBTOTAL 1,147,140
CONTINGENCY 15% 172,070
TOTAL CLOSURE COSTS 1,319,210
ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITATIONS

1 Pricing is for 2020 present value unless otherwise noted.

2 Extended prices are rounded to the nearest $100; however, in cases where the nearest $100 value is $0, an extended price of $100 has been assigned,

*Units:

AC = acre

CY = cubic yard
DAY = day

EA =each

LF = linear foot
LS = lump sum
SF = square foot
SY =square yard
YR = year

HCCD = RSMeans Heavy Construction Cost Data, 2010; adjusted for inflation
[ - Pr i j or estimation by Burns & McDonnell




Figures



e e T e I ]

e r o 3 s

v - L 34N92I13

05482}
veiues sl
SNOILAONOD DNILSIXS 0Z0Z
ALNNOD INONINHA

ol
DUSIA esods|q 31sem Plios
Auno) Juowasy

SNVA3 W .

pumpwga |  pauBup |

IYHILYANHSYd S 020Z ¥380100
] a1

aVOH ¥OVH1-O0ML

SUNOLNAS ONILSIXT
HINT S~
ABVANNOS ALY30Nd ————
ABVONNOE A3AMNS —  —
S713M ONINOLINOW -3

ANYONNOE 1SV —— —

-
savod /o

QN30T

1334
OML 81 TYAYILNI ¥NOLNOD X3aNI £

YSOdSIa

J1SVYM ANV ‘ONITIdMNI0LS

‘NOILYAYOXT TVINILYW ¥3A00

‘NOILONYLSNOD SHMINMO OL
3NJ AYYA AVW AHdYHDO0dOL 31IS z

AJAYNS 0202 ‘0L AINF IHL
NQ a3sv8 Si AHJVHOOdOL 3L1IS i

S3LON

arn| ds ewsend v

uopduasap [e%a | Aa | mep ‘ou)

o o s e ey i e

30N34
H3igrauad n\

AdYHOdW3L = /]

/

/

/

/i
FAdar
i 4
f I
P

[}

g

Lk

A

i

[13 i

0i




BNOISIATY JOVHOTYNIZ-O-ABD I1d | 6220 Swnce i burs Soe st ich e
axHo| Ae NOILAHDSI0 aiva [ Ak = . ONIWOAM 'ALNNOD LNOWINS
B8R _| din AN AHOLTTOIN Y03 IS8T 6000813] 0| 5qu00 a3onaini 1v 001 =L TWOS | avig aviawnod gsa T114ANY1 INOHSOHS o~
SH_| J3y OIS0 NS UaSAAH | Wie0s | L 10w s oNnva NAL] S 1oo000r a1va T c
LLONTINI .4 THOSVHY aJphyv) Qs
10N S300 ¥vE SIHL HI 5 Ag O3 ol
5 O3HI NY1d 3avaD TYNIS L
ONINHVM :
d3Y AH NMYHA ~———
o
=

= SURFATESWATER BUN-ON
OVERSIDN. CHANNEL

SURFACE WATER RUN—ON
DIVERSION CHANNEL v

PREPARED SUBGRADE OVERLYING AREA IDENTIFIED AS "WASTES

DISPOSED PRIOR TO OCTOBER 1993 (RECLAIMED MAY 1984)"
REPRESENTS FINAL GRADE Of PREVIOUSLY CLOSED AREA (1994,

NOTE:

TR | ey, e T o e A P R TR S A = N ST TER



v
VoA
yod
oszszL
13en03 oalesd / /
(43NS 6107 H3A0 AANNS 0202) v
30vdSYIY GINNSNOD 0202 Vo
ALNNOD LNOWSNS 30N34 \ T
. CETEDTERERY \ [ wanoN
KMINZ / v .(
] —— = = - - == — E— a—— — e — | P A — - ¥ \ Y \\
Piisig fesodsi a1sem PIIOS = e = el — \
uneojouiar g ey P bt ml ) = N
- — e —
VD ) S = TN \
J = -~ T N\

SNYAT W
Lol ben o

TYHILYDNHSYd 'S
P ITen

poufmp

0202 ¥380L00
ZRp |

TIEANNOTSN M
SNUNEN

SUNOLNOD ONILSIX |
> QVOH MOVH1-OML _
NI ————

AHYONNOS ALE3d0¥d e

AMYANNOS ASANNS -
STTIM ONIYOLINOW > |
AYYONNOB 31SYM — — — _

savou s

aN3931

SOMVA DI9ND = AD
0¥3Z L3N e — —

R E] — ﬁ

1no
HOVdH0S!

1007-OML #
MY STYAYILNI ¥NOLNDD 2

A3AYNS |
610Z 'ZL AN IHL ONY A3ANNS
020Z '0L ATNF 3HL N3IMLIE
UMD ML SINIS T I
NMOHS HOVdOSI 3HL L

S3LON

| 5| o8 0T v

wondistap Ipwa| Aq | mep |ou

£¥EEY THIHONTE)

(4nv ¥O4 a3sN} (1713) AD 288'8 ;mz/ /

-, (4nv ¥O4 @3asN) (1) AD 226'€ “13N '
¥ A003bE )

s/

5

&

St

ek =

=

e

il

]
A b

pon

o M .

U

P



— A BERPUT s AN B PRI S L T LIIT LIS e W e SN VR PO R AN T et K
Tt 2] ] Ry ey 3%y O] oA
SR ¥ i© ¥ weun \
\ e
v s ¥38n914 Vo
“ADE Sunmesp \ - » ?
osss2L \
3ONZ4
oo Yodat ETEVTNERE [N
ATAMIS 0207 OL GIUYAWOD ¥IAOD TWhidl

3OVdSHIV ONINIWYZS 0Z0Z
ALNNOD LNOWINS

N ———
PUISIQ |esodsiq 3seMm PiOS
Auno) uoway

SNYA3 W -
) paubican
TWHILYdNHSYd S 0202 ¥380.L00

pamep oep

TTENNOTSH N\
SNANEN

SUNOLNOD DNILSIX3

Qv0™ HOWHL-OML
30N3d —
AQVONNOE ALHIdOYd == = e

AYYANNOE™ AJAENS - o
STTIM ONINOLINOW -3

AUYONNQE TLGYM e o e

Savoy s
EeINEGER]
SQEVA J18N3 = AD
13N 0¥3Z
M
1no

"HOVdOS]

(LNDY AD 26208 L3N
AD€02'8F T
ADG6F'69 LND
‘BONVIVE IUS S

TNOSOL 40 S3HONI-9 ANY ‘S1I0S
Y3A0D IAILOTLOY 4O SIHONIBL
‘SHIAV OILIHLNASCID
HIAOD ILVIASWNILNI
3O S3HINI 2L S1 310U

H3A0D TUNIJ QILLIWEAd SHL ¥

H3A0D 3LYIA3WNILNI ¥O NI
3AMTONI LON O SFANNTOATIA €

1005-0OMmL
IHY STVAYIALNIYNOLNOD T

A3ANNS 0202 ‘0L

ATINr 3HL ONY SANOLNOD ILSYM

40 dO1 Q3LLINY3d 3HL NIIMLIG

TALND IHL SINTSTEEIY
NMOHS HOVdOSI 3HL L

S3LON

7| 05 TRmAE Y

uoTphIsaE P¥3 | Aq | aiep |ou

»
-



Dubois Landfill
2019-2020 Capacity Audit



Memorandum
Date:  March 26, 2021
To:

From:

BURNS\\MSDONNELL

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District Board of Directors

Matt Evans, Burns & McDonnell

Subject: Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District — Operations Summary

This memorandum presents the following:

Summary of the District’s financial position

Summary of projected expenses and revenues
Long-term closure/post-closure financial responsibilities
Landfill operation metrics

Financial Position

The following table summarizes the key financial considerations for the four District facilities.

Closure /
i Post Closure
2019- | Projected Closure "Immediate” Post- Post- Future I Euture
Site 2020 Closure Cost Closure Closure Closure | Development Develobment
AUF Year Cost (30-yr) (50-yr) (2021-2041) Fur': p
(Ibslyd?) Balance
Lander 1,098 2028 $2,719,660 | $2,702,000 | $3,005,560 | $3,506,487 | $5,041,346
2054
g?:v(i 1,029 (active | $3,522,610 | $5,902,610 | $2,808,610 | $3,276,712 | $1,291,346
area)
Shoshoni N/A 2021 $1,319,210 |  $217,000 $575,760 | $670,553 $0
Dubois 542 2075 $311,970 | $1,323,210 | $813,530 | $949,118 | $3,105,208 -
Total - $7,873,450 | $10,144,820 | $7,203,460 | $8,402,870 | $9,437,899 | $ 16,466,876




N

Memorandum (cont’d) BURNS AN MEDONNELL

March 26, 2021

Page 2

The 10-year financial projection for the District is presented in the following figure.

US Dollars

District 10-Year Financial Projection

$18,000,000
— . = 2028
516,000,000 5 Lander Landflll Closed —
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
2023
$10,000,000 Lander Transfer Statlon Constructlon: 2 5M
Lander Landflll Sile Improvements: 0.7M 2025
Other Const: 100k Lander Leachate Treatment 2030
Front End Loader: 300k f I"Sysézm: 1l;Amk 2028 (ander Landfill
: 200k ther Const: .
$8,000,000 flace:2 Dc;m: 500k S;zz:;wk Closure:3 1M
s Compactor: 600k Blade; 300k -~
_.' ',- Roll-aff Truck: 200k Other Eq;llp: 100k JCE
SG'OOO'OOO '."- .'.. .-'- .‘.- '.""'-.. ..-"-""._. ."' ...'_
---.-:_....-.-';_.._... ----- (PR U ———"— ---—‘—‘;‘-::.'M—h"—'—--——n--—’—“ﬂ-'h'.-—--—-————a:-.—.
$4,000,000 >
$2,000,000
S0
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
----- Projected Expenses = == == Drpjected Revenue s PN Balance Closure /Post-Closure Liability

The information shown on the figure corresponds to the following.

Projected Expenses: Total labor, general operating, equipment purchases, and
construction expenses.

Projected Revenue: Total revenue from fees, mill levy, auto tax and all other forms of
District revenue.

Fund Balance: District bank account that is set aside for landfill closure, post-closure and
other large District construction projects.

Annual Construction and Equipment Expenses: Large construction and equipment
expenses are summarized in boxes corresponding to the year of the expense.

Expenses and Revenues
The projected expenses and revenues for the District are summarized on the following Figure:



Memorandum ccont’d) BURNS&«EDONNELL

March 26, 2021

Page 3
District Projected Revenues and Expenses
2023
Lander Transfer Siatlon Construction: 2.5M
Lander Landflll Site [mprovements: 0,701
Other Const: 100k 2025 2o
$8,000 Frant End Loader: 300k Lander Leachate Treatment '-“"derli"“"n"
’ ,000 Blade: 200k System: 1M Closure:3.AM
Other Const: 400k
Dozer: 600k 2028
Compacior: 600k SSTBPEVZBL‘;D'(k
Roll-off Truck: 200k ozer:
$7’0001000 AR Blade: 300k
Other Equip; 100k
$6,000,000

$5,000,000 . He—

US Dollars

]

]

L 4

1

{

]
\
1
1
'S

$4,000,000 e
Fo——G S e et
$3,000000 - ae- === B e e
| ! s
$2,000,000 - ‘-I——ﬁ—I—-i-—l---—l-———-l————I———,—‘\———-I---"—-I—‘—g——I
// \\ ;’ <
?k"- 4 \\
$1,000,000 a 4 “‘2.,3___‘/’ S
\\ - a? g\
\\ - -‘-"-.. 2;7 TR -
SO . - = ~ ‘2, = - -
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Construction -+~ Equipment —+ General Expenses —o=—Total Expenses
- &« Fees Revenue -m MIll Levy Revenue ==Total Revenue

The information on the figure above corresponds to the following.

e Construction: Anticipated schedule and costs of all District construction project. Major
construction projects are summarized in the boxes within the figure.

e FEquipment: Anticipated replacement dates and costs of all District equipment. Major
equipment replacements are summarized in the boxes within the figure.

® General Expenses: Labor, general operating, fuel, insurance and all other non-
construction and non-equipment replacement expenses.
Total Expenses: Sum of construction, equipment, and general expenses.

e Fees Revenue: Revenue from tipping fees and other customer charges (e.g., confidential
disposal charges, tarp fees, etc.).



Memorandum (cont’d)

March 26, 2021
Page 4

8
BURNS «VISDONNELL

e Mill Levy Revenue: Mill levy and auto tax revenue. Note that it is assumed that mill levy
revenue in 2022 will be approximately $200,000 less than 2021 and then hold at that
amount through the remainder of the projection period.

o Total Revenue: Sum of fee revenue and mill levy revenue.

Long-Term Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities
The District’s four landfills have significant closure and post-closure expenses. The following
summarizes the anticipated amount and timing of those expenses.

Closure and Post-Closure Costs

Projected Closure Cost Post-Closure Costs Post-Closure Costs
Closure Date (30-year total) (50-year total)
Dubois 2075 $311,970 $813,530 $949,118
Lander 2028 $2,719,660 $3,005,560 $3,506,487
Sand Draw 2054 $3,522,610 $2,808,610 $3,276,712
Shoshoni 2021 $1,319,210 $575,760 $670,553
Total Liability $7,873,450 $7,203,460 $8,402,870

Note: All costs are Present Value {2020).

The District’s total closure and post-closure liability, assuming a 30-year closure period, is
$15,076,910. If the post-closure period were to extend to S0O-years, the total liability increases to
$16,276,320. Costs to be incurred during the post-closure period include groundwater
monitoring, erosion control, fencing, reporting, and other activities necessary to maintain the
landfills after their closed and before they are stable enough to stop monitoring.




Memorandum (cont’d)

March 26, 2021

Page 5

Landfill Operation Metrics
The following table summarizes the landfill metrics for each of the four landfills for the 2019-

8
BURNS NQDONNELL

2020 fiscal year.
2019 ~ 2020 Landfill Metrics
Tons Volume Airspace Utilization | Remaining Volume Soil Balance
Disposed Consumed | (lIbs. per cubic yard) (cubic yards) (cubic yards)
(cubic yards)
Dubois 578 2,132 542 186,714 99,000
Lander 31,829 57,991 1,098 480,224 92,000
Sand Draw 3,653 7,104 1,029 2,364,051 341,790
Shoshoni' NA 12,854 NA 5,864 29,700
Notes:

1. Shoshoni landfill does not have a scale. All waste received is measured in volume. All three other landfills weigh
waste received prior to disposal.

2. Soil balance is the net volume of soil available onsite for all future landfill operations. All four landfills are in a
surplus situation.

NA = Not Applicable

Ibs = pounds

The following summarizes the information presented in the table above.
Tons Disposed: The weighed amount of waste disposed of in the landfill during the audited year.
Volume Consumed: The airspace consumed in the landfill during the audited year.

Airspace Utilization: An industry standard metric for measuring the efficiency of filling
operations. The higher the airspace utilization the longer the more waste that can be disposed of
in the landfill footprint; thus, extending the life of the landfill and delaying construction of a new
landfill. A good landfill operation maintains an airspace utilization between 1,000 and 1,200 lbs
per cubic yard. Lower airspace utilizations can occur at construction and demolition debris
landfills (e.g., the Dubois Landfill) due to the bulky nature of the waste received.

Remaining Volume: The remaining permitted airspace in the landfill at the end of the audited
year.

Soil Balance: The volume of onsite soil that can be used for cover operations less the amount of
soil that is needed for cover operations.

Closing
Additional details, including assumptions, are included in the annual landfill capacity reports.
Figures and tables used to complete landfill calculations are also included.



8
BURNS N’IEDONNELL

February 10, 2021

Mr. Andrew Frey, P.E.

Superintendent

Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District
P.O. Box 1400

Lander, WY 82520

Re: FY 2019-2020 Capacity Audit for Dubois Landfill, Fremont County, Wyoming
Dear Mr. Frey:

Burns & McDonnell has completed volume and airspace utilization calculations for the Dubois
Landfill in accordance with Authorization No. 28 dated July 20, 2020. The calculations are
based on comparing the July 16, 2019, survey completed by William H. Smith & Associates, Inc.
to the July 9, 2020, survey and revised final cover grades and excavation plan developed during
FY 2019-2020. The revised drawings are included for reference.

Attached are drawings showing the existing conditions, final cover plan, and the cut/fill depths
between the 2020 and 2019 surveys and the final cover contours. The figures include:

» Figure 1 — 2020 Existing Conditions

» Figure 2 — Final Cover Plan

» Figure 3 — 2020 Airspace Consumed (July 2020 Survey over July 2019 Survey)

» Figure 4 — 2020 Airspace Remaining (Final Cover Plan compared to July 2020 Survey)
Figure 5 — 2020 Excavation Remaining (July 2020 Survey over Final Base Grades)

v

Also attached are tables showing the projected remaining life and closure and post-closure costs.

AIRSPACE UTILIZATION

The results of the volume calculations were used to obtain the current airspace utilization factor
(AUF). The volumes were calculated using AutoCAD Civil 3D.

The calculated AUF for the landfill over the period from July 16, 2019, and July 9, 2020, is 542
pounds per cubic yard (Ib/cy). This value was calculated by dividing the total weight of waste
disposed by the total consumed airspace (including daily cover soil) over the same period. Per
District records, the total construction and demolition (C&D) tonnage placed in the landfill over

8201 Norman Center Drive \ Suite 300 \ Bloomington, MN 55437
O 952-656-6003 \F 952-229-2523 \ burnsmcd.com



8
BURNS ,NleDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 2

the period of the surveys was 577.65 tons.! Per survey the total consumed airspace was
calculated to be 2,132 cubic yards.

LANDFILL CAPACITY

Based on the airspace remaining between the top of final cover and the base of the landfill
surface , the remaining waste capacity of the Dubois Landfill, as currently permitted, is estimated
to be approximately 186,714 cubic yards (42,127 cubic yards between the existing surface and
final cover plus 144,587 cubic yards between the existing surface and base of the landfill). This
remaining capacity does not include final cover or intermediate cover.

FUTURE AIR SPACE CONSUMPTION RATES AND SITE LIFE

The amount of C&D waste that was landfilled at the Dubois Landfill in FY 2019-2020 was 578
tons. The tonnage received at the landfill has varied over the last eight years. The following
tonnages of waste have been received at the landfill since 2012:

» July I, 2012 to June 30, 2013 = 370 tons
» July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 = 504 tons
» July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 = 852 tons
» July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 =316 tons
» July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 = 408 tons
» July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 =414 tons
» July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 = 445 tons
» July 16, 2019 to July 9, 2020 = 578 tons
» Average =485 tons

C&D waste tonnage was consistent in FY 2019-2020 with the average tonnage over the last eight
years. Variance of annual construction and demolition waste tonnage is common depending on
weather, demolition projects, and economic development. For purposes of calculating the
remaining landfill life, the site average was used as a starting point for future estimates, as well

! Total tonnage received at the landfill during the period between July 16, 2019, and July 9, 2020, survey was
comprised of 578 tons of construction and demolition debris (C&D) waste, 0.14 tons of biowaste, 6 tons of
carcasses, 1,53 tons of MSW, 11 tons of sump waste, 226 tons of yard waste, 2 tons of animal waste, and 2 tons of
out of county waste.



S
BURNS ,N'ISDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 3

as a 1.0% annual growth rate was used. Using the average tonnage will help to even out the
projections as each year of the capacity audit report fluctuates with local C&D projects.

Projections are based on an airspace utilization factor of 452 Ib/cy, which is the six-year average
of FY 2013-2014 through FY 2019-2020. Similar to the projection of tonnages, the use of an
average AUF value will calculate a more constant remaining capacity projection from year to
year.

Based on the growth rate, AUF assumptions, and remaining waste capacity, the Dubois Landfill
will reach capacity at the beginning of 2075.

SOIL BALANCE

Soil balance calculations were completed by comparing the amount of soil required for landfill
operations to the amount of soil available onsite. The following summarizes the soil required
and available.

Soil Required:

» Routine Soil — Assuming a waste to routine cover soil ratio is 10:1, the approximate amount
of routine cover soil required for the remaining life of the Dubois Landfill is 17,264 cubic
yards. Based on the remaining site life calculations discussed above, there are approximately
186,714 cubic yards of remaining waste and soil cover airspace; thus, approximately 17,344
cubic yards of soil are needed for routine cover in the landfill operation.

» Final Cover Soil — The amount of soil required to close the landfill is estimated to be 28,209
cubic yards based on the currently permitted cover profile that includes 30-inches of soil.

» Total Soil Requirements — The total soil requirement for the Dubois Landfill for the remainder
of the site life is 45,473 cubic yards.

Soil Available:

» Potential Soil from Excavation of Permitted Cells — Based on the annual survey and a
proposed excavation plan for the landfill, the amount of excavation remaining at the site to
reach final grades is approximately 144,587 cubic yards.

Soil Balance:

» Based on the estimates provided above, the Dubois Landfill has a soil surplus of
approximately 99,000 cubic yards.

CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE COST ESTIMATES

Burns & McDonnell has completed cost estimates for closure and post-closure management of
the Dubois Landfill. The estimated present value of the closure cost for the Landfill is $311,970,



N\
BURNS@SDONNELL

Mr. Andrew Frey, PE
February 10, 2021
Page 4

which is a $6,580 increase compared to 2019. The increase is due to annual inflation of
construction costs.

The estimated combined present value of the post-closure cost for the C&D landfill and MSW
landfill is $813,530. The post-closure cost estimate is based on an assumed 30-year post-closure
period. The closure and post closure cost estimates are attached.

It should be noted that Federal EPA guidelines require states to enforce a minimum 30-year post
closure period. It is likely that post-closure will extend beyond 30-years — although at a lower
cost. For post-closure to come to an end the landfill needs to be stable and not producing
leachate and/or landfill gas at significant levels that warrant monitoring. For comparison, the
post-closure cost of 50-years, assuming a 75% reduction in annual post-closure costs due to
reduced sampling and property management costs for years 31- 50, is $949,118.

CLOSING

Should you have any questions regarding this letter report, please do not hesitate to contact Matt
Evans at 952-656-3629 or at maevans@burnsmed.com.

Sincerely,
Burns & McDonnell

/1/4&,\/. <

Matthew J. Evans, PE
Project Manager



Tables



DUBOIS LANDFILL-2020 REMAINING AIRSPACE DATE: 10/23/2020

CRD Tonnage= 578[tans
Predicted Future Generation Growth = 1%
Aispace Utilization Factor (AUF)= 452|Ib/cy
Remaining Capacity {without final cover) = 186,714 |cy

Remaining Airspace Table

Year Total Tonnage Annual Airspace Remaining Capacity
[Dubois] Consumed (cy) {ey)

2000 266 1,177 185,537
2021 583 2,583 182,954
2022 589 2,609 180,346
2023 595 2,635 177,711
2024 601 2,661 175,050
2025 607 2,688 172,363
2026 613 2,714 169,648
2027 619 2,742 166,907
2028 626 2,769 164,138
2029 632 2,797 161,341
2030 638 2,825 158,516
2031 644 2,853 155,663
2032 651 2,881 152,782
2033 657 2,910 149,872
2034 664 2,939 146,932
2035 671 2,969 143,964
2036 677 2,998 140,965
2037 684 3,028 137,937
2038 691 3,059 134,878
2039 698 3,089 131,789
2040 705 3,120 128,669
2041 712 3,151 125,517
2042 719 3,183 122,335
2043 726 3,215 119,120
2044 733 3,247 115,873
2045 741 3,279 112,594
2046 748 3,312 109,282
2047 756 3,345 105,936
2048 763 3,379 102,558
2049 771 3,412 99,145
2050 779 3,447 95,698
2051 786 3,481 92,217
2052 794 3,516 88,702
2053 802 3,551 85,150
2054 810 3,587 81,564
2055 818 3,622 77,941
2056 826 3,659 74,283
2057 835 3,695 70,588
2058 843 3,732 66,855
2059 852 3,770 63,086
2060 860 3,807 59,279
2061 869 3,845 55,433
2062 877 3,884 51,550
2063 886 3,923 47,627
2064 895 3,962 43,665
2065 904 4,001 39,664
2066 913 4,041 35,623
2067 922 4,082 31,541
2068 931 4,123 27,418
2069 941 4,164 23,254
2070 950 4,206 19,049
2071 960 4,248 14,801
2072 969 4,290 10,511
2073 979 4,333 6,178
2074 989 4,376 1,802
2075 958 4,420 -2,618 <== Capacity Reached in 2075
2076 1,008 4,464 -7,082
2077 1,019 4,509 -11,591
2078 1,029 4,554 -16,145
2079 1,039 4,600 -20,745
2080 1,049 4,646 -25,390
2081 1,060 4,692 -30,082
2082 1,071 4,739 -34,821
2083 1,081 4,786 -39,607
2084 1,092 4,834 -44,442
2085 1,103 4,882 -49,324
2086 1,114 4,931 -54,255
2087 1,125 4,981 -59,236
2088 1,136 5,030 -64,266
2089 1,148 5,081 -69,347

Z:\Clients\ENS\FCSWD\125750_2020-2021Srvcs\Support\Data\2020 Caparcity Audits\PDFs\Dubois\20201030_ Airspace Utilization Fremont Caunty - Dubois



Closure Cost Estimate
Northeast {C&D) Area
Dubois Landflll

item No. Line Item Est Qty. Unlt * Unlt Price Extended Price Description
Mobillzation & General Site Preparation
1 Mobilization, Demobilization, Bonding, Insurance 8 -] $182,80000 § 14,600.00 Judgement includes clearing, grubbing, construction
2 Construction BMPs {erosion & Sediment Controls) 5 % $182,80000 $ 9,100.00 Judgement; includes plan, silt fence, checks, surfacing
3 Minor Road Improvements 1 DAy $ 233000 § 2,330.00 Judgement; includes one heavy piece of equipment and one operator.
$ 26,030.00
Site Grading and Associated Earthwork
4 Grade intermediate cover 7 ACRE  § 1,69000 $ 11,830.00 Judgement based on similar projects
S 11,830.00
Final Cover
5 Load, haul, and place final cover soil from on-site stockpile 11,300 cyY $ 520 $ 58,780.00 Judgement based on similar projects
$ 59,780.00
East Channel Construction
6 Channel Construction 800 LF S 8100 $ 64,800.00 2012 Dubois Closure Bid
$ 64,800.00
Site Reclamation
7 Revegetate 348,480 SF s 008 $§ 29,580.00 Judgement based on similar projects, includes soil amendments
8 Grade disturbed areas 8 ACRE $ 169000 S 13,520,00 HCCD 31 22 16.10 3300; areas disturbed as part of channel construction
$ 43,100.00
Miscellaneous
9 Survey Controt and As-Built documentation 10 DAY $ 424000 $ 4,24000 WDEQSWG #12
$ 4,240.00
Engineering and Construction Management
10 General public notification 1 LS $ 4,04000 S 4,040,00 Judgement
11 Design and Bid Administration 10% LS $208,80000 $ 20,880,00 Judgement, assumes 10% of construction cost
12 Construction Quality Assurance 10% LS $208,80000 § 20,880.00 ludgement, assumes 10% of construction cost
13 Construction Management 8% LS $208,80000 § 16,700,00 Judgement, assumes 8% of constructian cast
SUBTOTAL § 62,500.00
SUBTOTAL $ 271,280.00
CONTINGENCY 15% S 40,690.00
TOTAL CLOSURE COSTS H 311,970.00
ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITATIONS
1 Pricing is for 2020 present value unless otherwise noted
2 Extended prices are rounded to the nearest 510,
*Units:
AC =acre
CY = cubic yard
DAY = day
EA = each

LF = linear foot
LS = lump sum
SF = square faot
SY =square yard
YR = year

HCCD = RSMeans Heavy Construction Cost Data, 2010; adjusted for inflation

Judgement - Professional judgement or estimation by Burns & McDonnell




Post-Closure Cost Estimate

Southwaest (MSW) Area

Duboais Landfill

Item No. Line Item Est Qty. Unit * Unit Price  Extended Price Description
1 Recordkeeping 30 YR k) 3,710 5 111,300 Judgement
2 Post-closure site Inspections 30 YR k) 860 S 25,800 WDEQ SWG 12
3 Methane Monitaring 30 YR S 1,490 S 44,700 Judgement, based on similar project
4 Groundwater Monitoring 30 YR S 11,460 S 343,800 2014 groundwater monitoring contract
ludgement (ave 0.5 PLS @ 160, 8 hr GPS tech @5100, 0.5hr datamgr @$100,
S Survey Control for settlement documentation 30 DAY S 1,260 S 37,800 $100 OCDs per day) one per year
6 Petition to terminate post-closure period 1 LS S 3710 S 3,710 Judgement
7 Methane Probe Abandonment 3 EA S 570 S 1,710 Judgement based on previous experience with probe abandonment
8 Fence Maintenance Costs 3100 LF S 14 S 43,420 WDEQ SWG 12
9 Fence Removal Costs 3100 LF S 2 S 7,240 WDEQ SWG 12
10 Grounds maintenance 30 YR S 1,140 $ 34,200 Judgement; includes routine maintenance, revegetation of bare spots
SUBTOTAL] S 653,680
CONTINGENCY 15% $ 98,050
TOTAL POST-CLOSURE COSTS $ 751,730

ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITATIONS

1 Pricing is for 2020 present value unless otherwise noted.

2 Extended prices are rounded to the nearest $10.

*Units:

DAY = day

EA = each

LF = linear foot
LS = lump sum
YR = year

Judgement - Professional judgement or estimation by Lowham Walsh

SWQ - Solid Waste Guideline

WDEQ - Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality




Post-Closure Cost Estimate
Northeast (C and D) Area
Dubais Landfill

Item No. Line Iltem Est Qty. Unit * Unit Price Extended Price Description
1 Recordkeeping 5 YR S 3,710 $ 18,550 Judgement
2 Post-closure site Inspections 5 YR $ 860 S 4,300 WDEQ SWG #12, adjusted far inflation
3 Groundwater Monitoring S YR S 2330 S 11,650 2014 groundwater monitoring contract
Judgement (ave 0.5 PLS @ 160, 8 hr GPS tech @5100, 0.5hr
4 Survey Control for settlement documentation 5 DAY S 1,260 $ 6,300 datamgr @$100, $100 OCDs per day) one per year
5 Fence Maintenance Costs 2000 LF S 2 S 4,670 WDEQ SWG #12, adjusted for inflation
6 Petition to terminate post-closure period 1 LS 5 3,400 S 3,400 ludgement
7 Groundwater monitoring well abandonment 6 EA S 680 $ 4,080 Judgement, based on similar projects
8 Fence Removal Costs 2000 LF $ 0 s 790 WDEQ SWG #12, adjusted for inflation
SUBTOTAL| S 53,740
CONTINGENCY 15% S 8,060
TOTAL POST-CLOSURE COSTS 5 61,800

ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITATIONS

1 Pricing is for 2020 present value unless otherwise noted.

2 Extended prices are rounded to the nearest $10.

*Units:

DAY = day

EA = each

LF = linear foot
LS = lump sum
YR = year

Judgement - Professional judgement or estimation by Burns & McDonnell

SWG - Solid Waste Guideline

WDEQ - Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality




Figures



S —

T

T

- £ 5L ASEr |01 DA S pan jea T i LY STV MO e S R
[T
A 5 Lid i AU 4334 NI 3VOS
————
L L 38n914 o s °
am Bumran
054521 —_— - |
A= == = — i
SNOILIGNOD ONILSIX3 0202 | »o o _ \:\;Mua.“/
¢ ~ ~
— — > /|
ALNNOD LNOWTYS y ——— 7y 3 !
| LA = S i N
_ N |
e R \ " ;
DIISIQ fesodsicl A1SeM Pilos [v X h
ARune JUoLERH | / I .
__. 1
| . // !
| ( YOOr QAN *
L@ \ oY asso0 N
SNVAT ‘W . J 3
P | _paubysap \ >~ 0 i
TVHILVANHSYE'S | 0202 380100
paytinn aep ! \ o B LE /1_... ™o
! ﬂ 4 = . i N,
THENNOTGSW N N \ \\ 2 N
SNUNE ) \ 7 //
R 7/ \
P T \
| .1 / N
S, T \ ~
{ Rl
[ \. e = - //l
an_. I S lr:.....!.. ~ A\
LY NN . ~ N o ZHCZ OINVIIBY \ w
\ 3
i q\/.% 2y a.....f..r...... oNY a35010 N\ AP
r . '
[ __ JN L8 3 /\ s e , h
“ = . RO ~
14 — ~ b 2R / F % . i W K
> __ﬂ \ < g - ....a..,. \ N K/NQ
SNAOLNOD ONILSIXA 1 | 5 A ! 1 B i oy = T
| | 3| =0 ALV BOVA DM TR IY y # § - f \\
! P — & e
ANVANNOS ALYTONd — == — ' 1 ..r// e P \\\ ety J o aive
| N TS, | P _ o s d
| >~ =~ = e \\\\. v \\\
AMVANNOE AZAMNS e N o ) Vel a  F
(P - e
B . — #r A
STEMONHOLNON 8 \ 6 g N Z
| i ey Rl
. TOEALL ~ e 7/ = 3d WLIN
_ AHVEINNGE ABANTS —. = T 7~ 2 ZONVIddY
AMVONNOS 3LSVM e e 1 t /. e
| yauy 7
\ ;
| L, 4404080 D8N e \\
| -~
SONIaTING uﬁm Rl \ & \ \l.v&n%.
s | \ ~ ﬂ\\
) N 7
savod N } ~ oS
1 - \\mmw\
FEGER ] J ~ e
LI 3 = C s
1334 Il ~ - ——
OML SI TYANILNI ¥NOLNOI X3ONI  + 4 =~ -~ - d \
“vs0dsia ' - N
3LSYM ONV 'ONITIGHO0LS |4 —_— )
! e
NOLLVAVOX3 TVI4ZLVIN ¥3A00 b
‘NOLLONMISNOD SHINMO OL it
SN0 AYVA AV AHIVHOOJOL ALS € Y e NP e D)
‘ABANNS 0202 T —= ==z '
'EL HIBOLOO JHL WONS SI NMOHS == — =
AMYONNOE 3QISN| AHAYE90dOL 2
ASANNS 0202 '6 AINC IHL
NO 03SVE S| AHIVMOOdOL 3LS 1
‘S310N
3wl dsoetenl ¥
uopdpasep puo | Aq | mep ew
£ z n [ 1 ® ] I v t T '



el i et i uag maey Bipw 0 20 A SR T CES b

~ <
R § R // N
»00Z OZNIVIOIY —
—— =]
W - 3N aNv 435070 N NN - = F
s Buusn
os521
SHNOLNOD FASVYM 40 dOL NDIS30 ~ R Fhiason
~ & .
ALNNOD LNOWTH4 ~ r(
~ x|
N ~ e N
PNSI [esods AS0M PIS ~
Aunod wowmsy - \ /
\
\ =
\
SNVAZ W - \ ~
paysags | puublesp | \
TYHILYANHSYd 'S 0202 ¥IBOLOO \ ™~
DUIRED. 2 } \ ~
\ ™~
TTEANNOGS N \ 3
SNENng s \ E
\
2102 A3NIVIOY \
anv a3so10 \

\
/ —~
\ S
v ~
UNOLNOD NOISIA o0 .
!/
!/ 7
¥NOLNOO ONILSIX3 /
( !
d AYVONNOE ALY3dOdd =———===— — |
ALITIOVI ONITOADIY ~
\ |
AWVONNDE ABRNNS —  — \
\
STIZMONINOLNON ssnon rwos 4

TS

AHYONNOH 3LSYM = e o

SONIOINE

SOvod

B

A

N 2

HELER]

|
BEOLLLOL \V. e | < b .
| AYVONNOB AJANNS = l = 2
3 [ ) N = 7
e — g/ =5 —_— o= ~ - 4
1004 \\\! | Ty y s - ——— - Z \
OML TV STYANILNI ¥NOINOD b / ! ; i =

SYNOLNOD NOISIJ 31SYM 30 JOL I
IN3SIULIY SENOLNOI NDISZA €

020Z AYW NI _
TTINNOTOW B SNHNE AR 030IAO¥d
S3QVHO ILSYM 40 JOL Q3SIATY 2

ATAUNS 0202 't 43EOLO0

IHL WO S| NMOHS AYYONNQOE |

3AISNI AHAVHOO0dOL A3AENS |
0Z0Z '6 AN IHL

NO Q3SVE S| AHIVHDOJOL LIS

“S3LON

(R K -
P -

I W M My e

Seatate bttt / \

| 3rw| asjpeazion v
uondussep | pwa | Aq | mep ou

NOLLVIS H3ISNVHL S1SvM

£t £ a L] r t z [}



Sonail A 3 . SOUPET S Stad e A B AT SR AT T ey - O LT A O e S T S P A T
_ TP A - SSSeeeY
L - A e ~ - - - ——
LS P e TS ez amanos — ~ — paan wos
N = _"uz:un.ie.. _F | ; / 7 . OMw Q35012 = N - = "
054621
1esples 12atoud //.
{(A3ANNS 6107 ¥IAC AFAMNS 0202) e L
IOVJSHIY GINNSNOD 0202 L hagmon
ALNNOS LNOW3INS — (
—_
= < \ ¥/
= ~ o ~
[—— -~ =3 “
PINSIQ [es0dsig 315EM PIIOS =0 )
Awnod yuowany B Yo ~
\
\
SNVAT ‘W . b
PR | paiBreap |
TYHILYINHSVE S 020 ¥I8OL30
Bi-s Aep
TIEANNOGSR\\

SNINEY

TIT OFAVIOEY
ONY 03500

SHNOLNOD ONILSIX3

"~ 2}
AHYONNOH ALY3dOHd ——==— -y
AMVONNOE A3AMNS - — AD9LP'S 11ND
Z V34V MOHY08
> STI3IM ONIOLINOW >
AUVANNOE ILSYM e e e
-
3 s
SONIQTING 7 F
2 200
— ¥ 0
sovoy /Y e
Cad Ci
R < £
“aON3O3T # <
AN AJ0pvrZ LNO m.
STAVA JIBND = AD \ 1 vy MONNOE : v E
Ty L0 e
.____ % vauv T3 i % ”.,.,..
1Ny - — 3 - tF = % =
k ~3 0 ) A — iy ZL0N IIS AT OGS L TUH
: Sl > Sl f VENY TS 3ROV
HOVAOSI —_— N X .af_...\ .//r A= , v i wIHY
AJZEL'T ADZ9F 1ND % \ r _ S WA = N o .Q.".n 440 dONT I1BM
= SYIYY T4 OML IHL SSOHOY YUY TLSYM QHVA )/ P ozozieLi0L f

WIAOD H0 SIHONI9 - AD £90°L
+AD 08¢t SI SNOILYINDTYO 4NV
JHLNIGISN ANTOATIZ 3HL ¥

AYVYANNOE A3AINS

1004-OML
YUY STVAYIALNI ¥NOLINOD €

A3NANS 0202
‘EL ¥3BOL20 IHL WOU S| NMOHS
AMVANNOH JAISNI AHdYHO0dOL 2

A3ANNS

6L0Z ‘0L ATNM IHL ANV 'AANNS

0Z0Z ‘6 AINF IHL NIIMmL3g

TH/10D 3HL SLNISIUI3Y
NMOHS HOVAOSI IHL 'L

‘$3LON

3| dspeREal ¥ - -
[ pys | Aq | eep |oul o e e ; S = NOILYLS ¥34SNVHL ALEYM == m . — =

£ (43 3 [ 13 & L) [ L H r T z 1]



AT e 6 L e i Sy 3 e o) S LT e S ) e e T RS T R T

Tom ¢ B ¥ h ! i y “ .r.l ™~
| . == N\
e - [EELET i ove _f/ Euo_r%mn-wirﬂ._m%« /, / s3I
V - n = el =
[y om»mmrﬂag i | / ” 5 = = ~
(A3ANNS 020Z HIA0 ¥IAOO TWNI3) { | \ . -~ =59
ONINIVWIY JOVASHIY 0202 i 1 . - 7 ~ N A
ALNNOD LNOW3¥A . .—f / s e S i >~ < ~ Bt
e r=- ~ N
iR VA / S N S 4
o e e L 1 T ¥ \ / y/ e
IS lesodsig 3isem PlIOS v =
Auno) juowaly o a \\ N /
LN
L # /7 5 // /
LYSEAY \ e N
: N __ " / \ N
a0 TS \ / \
TYHILYANHSYd 'S 0202 ¥3BOLOO h N\ // / \ N
oo aien / 7\ / \ ~
\ N
TTIENNOTGI RN \ S
SNANAEN \ B
\ =
¢L0< QINIVTOZY /
any aIsoTo \
SHNOLNCO SNILSIX3

AYYONNOB ALY3HONd —— ===

ANVONNOE ASAMNS  — —
> STI3M ONIYOLINOW -3

AUVANNOE JLSYM o e

SONIOTNE @

sovod /L

an393l
SAUYA JIENT = AD
(114) AD 22420 mkmz
ne —— | o s
19 HOYJOSI Dexs
HOVYdOSI

T10S 20 S3IHINI-OE SI 340U
HIA0D TUNIJ OFLLIWY3d 3HL S

SHIA0D TWNI4
3ANTONI LON QG S3WNT0A 114 v

1004-OML
FY STIVARILNI ¥NOLNOD £

A3SANNS 0202
'€l 8380100 IHL WO¥ S| NMOHS
AHYANNOE JAISNI AHEVIOOJIOL z

A3AMNS 0Z0Z ‘6 AINM IHL

INV SENOLNOD 3LSVYM 40 JOL 0207

AV 3HL N33MLIE TII/LN0 SHL
S1INISIESTH NMOHS HOVJOSI 3HL 4

‘S31ON y
S e M
| ~N - ~ = o le Eotetetetetety _—————— Yo T
| arw| askemzmy v ._; - /:V..-rllu.l)r = .\\ = . Sttt KA/ \
0P, I - -_— — = e e m———
vy p¥o | Aa | wep ‘ou E_ f e HOUWIS H3dsivii s - — . — — BT
- |

e 2 n o i ] _ i ] 3 [ 3 ] [



T
e 3 I 5 @i
v - S 360
052521
1enues oaland

(830vaD 3SVE TYNIJ ¥IAC AFAHNS 0202)
ONINIYW3Y 30YY9 ISV 020

ALNNOD LNOW3YS

PR —
PuIsia jesods|a )sem pIoS
Ajuno? Juowoyy

SNYAT W J

— peoayd oyt

TWHILVANHSYd S 020Z ¥380100
paTIOn a1ep

TISNNOGSN\\
SNANEN

SYNCLNOD ONILSIX3
AYVONNOB ALNIHOUd === =
AYVONNOE AZAMNS —
STT3M ONINOLINOW Q
AMYONNOS ILEYM o o o

SONIaTINg E

~
savod /o

"LOOJ-OML
3V STYANZLNI ¥NOLNOD €

“AZAYNS 0202
€} ¥3B0LI0 IHL WOH4 S| NMOHS
AHYONNOB JAISNI AHIVHDOH0L 2

A3AdNS

0Z0Z '6 ATNM IHL ANV SHNOLNOD

31SYM 30 dOL 6+0Z IHL N3IML38

TUH/1ND 3HL SINIASIAIY
NMOHS V3V HOVJOSI 3HL R

$31ON

3MW|  dSEERZOL V

uondyasap | p¥> | 4q | mep |ou

—

Lz L =T e o P
SNNTOA ROILYAYIXNS Eigﬂ..‘ o —

7]

18

——————=a

£L0¢ QaNIY 10386
OV OFR01d

4

|
ALIMOYS G510
A

113

o

L]

e gy ey



FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET
"HIGHLIGHTS™

>> Revenue from property taxes expected to be down approximately $150,000 from last year
(based on the mill levy) and down approximately $340,000 from fiscal year 2019-2020.

>> Expected addition to the closure, post-closure & future development reserve is $1.8 million.
This brings our total closure, post-closure & future development reserve to $18,269,555,
which is fully funded for closure and post-closure with $3.2 million for future development
* Closure & Post-Closure estimated costs prepared by Burns & McDonnell as of 6/30/20 are $15,075,910

>> There is no salary adjustment included in the proposed budget. We have budgeted for
full employment which is 26 full-time positions and 2 part-time positions.

>> The expected increase for health insurance is 4%.
The proposed budgeted amount assumes full employment for the full year.

>> The expected increase for fuel costs is approximately 30%.

>> Major projects included in the proposed budget:
Shoshoni Closure $ 1,400,000
Engineering specs, plans & oversight for closure $ 145,000
Engineering specs, plans & oversight for scale facilites $ 110,000
Total proposed major projects $ 1,655,000

>> Major Capital Outlay included in the proposed budget:

2 Loaders $ 400,000
1 Pick-up truck $ 60,000
Utility tractor with mower $ 50,000
3 Roll-off containers $ 40,000
Scale facilities for Lander, Dubois & Sand Draw $ 2,000,000
Software upgrades & equipment for Scale houses $ 50,000

Total proposed Capital Outlay $ 2,600,000




FY 7/1/121-6/30/22

Proposed Budget

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRI  C 'k to Create a POF

get Hearing
PO Box 1400 Location:|52 Beebee Rd, Lander, WY 82520
Lander, WY 82520 Date:|TBD
(307) 332-7040 Time:|TBD
Fremont County —1 Budget Prepared by:|Susan Brodie, CPA
[EA___ BUDGET MESSAGE WS t641049)]

The Fremont County Solid Waste Disposal District continues to work at operating an efficient solid waste program, striving to responsibly
manage the tax monies of Fremont County.

The closure, post-closure & future development reserve is $18.3 million and the cash reserve is $750,000 for a total reserve balance of $19
milllion, including $1.8 million added with the fiscal year 2021-22 budget. All excess revenues and "carry-over” from the prior fiscal year are
directed to the reserve account for future closure, post-closure monitoring and future develpment of disposal sltes.

The budgeted expenses for fiscal year 2021-22 total approximately $8.1 million. Significant expenditures included in the budgeted expenses
are, as follows:

Shoshoni Landfill Closure - $1.4 million (partially covered by a grant for $640,000, which is included in budgeted revenue)

New Scale Facilities for Lander, Dubois & Sand Draw - $2 million

Equipment Purchases - $540,000 for 2 loaders, pickup truck, utility tractor w/ mower, and 3 roll-off containers.

The District has budgeted for full staff with regards to wages and wage related expenses. No wage adjustmenis were included in the
budgeted wages. Health insurance increased approximately 4% and the Wyoming Retirment increased 0.5% (increase split between
employees and employer contributions). The Worker's Compensation rate has been significantly reduced due to the Safety training
implemented by the District

In summary, the budgeted expenses exceed budgeted revenues by $2.8 million. This is due largely to the projects identified above. The
budgeted shorfall is covered by the cash "carry-over" resulting, in part, from the delay of the Shoshoni Closure. This project was previously
budgeted, but has been delayed to allow for demolition projects in the town of Shoshoni

[s8__ RESERVE DESCRIPTION
The Reserve account includes a cash reserve for approximately 3 months of operating funds and a reserve for the future closure, post-
closure monitoring and future development of the County's landfills and transfer stations

S-C
Date of End Does the districl have regular office hours
| Names of Board Members of Term exceeding 20 hours per week? Yes
Steve Baumann 12/31/23 If Yes, enter
[Rob Doicater 12/31/23 Address of office:| 52 Besbee Rd. _
Richard Klaproth 12/31/23 City, State, Zip:| Lander, WY 82520
Michael Adams 12/31/22 Phone Number:[ 307-332-7040
Rodney Haper 12/31/22 Hours Open:| _ 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Monday - Friday
Mark Moxley 12/31/22
Jennifer Lamb 12/31/21
Robert Townsend 12731121
Gary Weisz 12/31/21

Where are the minutes of your board meeting available for public review?
|W.tr§shma1ger5.om

How and where are the notices of meeting posted for the public?
|Published in the local newspaper.

Where are the public meetings held?

|52 Beebee Road, Lander Wyoming




PROPOSED BUDGET SUMMARY

2019-2020 2020-2021 “ 2021-2022 | Pending |
I 220 o) —I Actual Esti Pro d roval
S-1 Total Budgeted Expenditures $3,590,312 $3,991,295]  $8,389,352

s2 Total Principal to Pay on Debt $0 sojf $0
s-3 Total Change to Restricted Funds $754,120 $1.849,760  $1,802,679
54 Total General Fund and Forecasted Revanues Available [ $10,669.251 36916315 _s10.192.031 [N
5 Amount requested from County Commissioners [ 52426728 52220000 32,063,961 NN
[ss Additional Funding Needed : I £ [N
VA 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
I REVEIGE U w Actua) Estimated Proposed al
$-7 Operating Revenues $3,119,333 I $2,620,500
S8 Tax levy (From the County Treasurer) $2,080,507|  $1,885,000 $1,738,961
S0 Government Support $29 402 $36,917| $30,000
$-10 Grants $32,654 $0|| $640,346
$-11 Other County Support (Not from Co. Treas.) $346,219 $335,000(| $325,000
$-12 Miscellaneous $513,429 $211,691)| $204,100
813 Other Forecasted Revenue $0 $0]| $0
[s-14 Total Revenue | $6,121544]  s2.468.608 55558907
FY 7/1/21-6/30/22 FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTRICT
2016-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
I EXPENDITURE SUMMARY e Wk A P I
815 Capital Outiay $552.765 $576,657]|
s-16 Interest and Fees On Debt $0 $ojf
§-17 Administration $627,031 $732,862ff
s-18 Operations $1,766,169 $1,962,338|[
§-19 Indirect Costs $644,347 $719,438]
S-20R Expenditures paid by Reserves $0 Gl
[s20 Total Expenditures $3,590,312]  $3,991,295|  $8,389,352
2018-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
DEBT SUMMARY Aclual e o o
s-21 Principal Paid on Debt | $0] sl $0
2018-2020 | 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
CASH AND INVESTMENTS = e ﬂ . '
s-22 TOTAL GENERAL FUNDS [[saaa7707]  sa4a7.707] 34633124
Summary of Reserve Funds
S-23 Beginning Balance in Reserve Accounts
8-24 a. Sinking and Debt Service Funds 30 50|l $0
$25 b. Reserves $14,612,996] $15,367,116| $17,216,876
826 c. Bond Funds $0 0
Total Reserves (a+b+c) $14,612,996 $15,367,116 $17.216,876
S27 Amount to be added
S-28 a. Sinking and Debt Service Funds $0 3 50
§29 b. Reserves §754,120  $1,849,760|  $1,802,679
$-30 ¢. Bond Funds 30 $0
Total to be added (a+b+c) $754,120]  $1,849,76 $1,802,679
$31 Subtotal $15,367,116
§-32 Less Total to be spent $0
S-33 TOTAL RESERVES AT END OF FISCAL YEAR [ 15,367,116

End of Summary

Budget Officer / District Official (if not same as "Submitted by")

DISTRICT ADDRESS: PO Box 1400

DISTRICT PHONE:

Lander, WY 82520

3073327040

Date adopted by Special District

PREPARED BY: Susan Brodie, CPA

Prepared in compliance with the Uniform Municipal Fiscel Procedures Act (W.S. 16-4-101 through 124) as it applies.

1423119

Form approved by Wyorning Departmant of Audit, Public Funds Division



Proposed Budget

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DIS FYE 6/30/2022
NAME OF DISTRICT/BOARD
[ PROPERTY TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS |
DOA Chart 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
of Accounts Actual Estimated Proposed roval
R-1 Property Taxes and Assessments Received
R-1.1  Tax Levy (From the County Treasurer) $2,080,507 $1,738,961
R-12 Other County Support (see note on the right) 4005 $346,219 $335,000]] $325,000
FORECASTED REVENUE |
[DOATHARt [ 2019-2020 | 2020-2021 || 2021-2022 Pending
of Accounts Actual Estimated Proposed Approval
R-2 Revenues from Other Governments
R-21 State Aid 4211
R-2.2 Additional County Aid (non-treasurer) 4237
R-23 City (or Town) Aid 4237
R-24 Other (Specify)  Pmtin Lieu of Taxes 4237 $29,402 $36,917 $30,000
R-25 Total Government Support $29.402 $36,917 $30,000
R-3 Operating Revenues
R-3.1 Customer Charges 4300 $2,982,203 $2,777,609 $2,500,000
R-32 Sales of Goods or Services 4300 $137,130 $115,381][ $90,500
R-33 Other Assessments 4503 $0 $20,000(| $30,000
R-34 Total Operating Revenues $3,119,333 $2,912,990 $2.620,500
R-4 Grants
R-41 Direct Federal Grants 4201
R-42 Federal Grants thru State Agencies 4201
R-43 Grants from State Agencies 4211 $32,654 $0f{ $640,346
R-4.4 Total Grants $32,654 $0 $640,346
R-5 Miscellaneous Revenue
R-51 Interest 4501 $239,690 $207,091 $200,000
R-52 Other: Specify Miscellaneous 4500 $4,005 $4,600 $4,100
R-53 Other: See Additional $269,734
R-54 Total Miscellaneous $513,429 $211,691 $204,100
R-55 Total Forecasted Revenue $3.694,818 $3.161.598| $3,494,946
R-6 Other Forecasted Revenue
R-6.1 a. Other past due as estimated by Co. Treas.
R-82 b. Other forecasted revenue (specify):
R-6.3
R-6 4
R-65
R-66 Total Other Forecasted Revenue (a+b)




Proposed Budget

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTF FYE  6/30/2022
NAME OF DISTRICT/BOARD
[ CAPITAL OUTLAY BUDGET
[DOAThart | 20192020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
of Accounts Actual Estimated roval

E-1 Capital Outlay
E-1.1  Real Property $54,928 $2,000,000
E-12 Vehicles 6210
E-1.3 Office Equipment $11,070
E-14 Other (Specify)
E-1.5 Equipment $486,767 $524,657 $550,000
E-1.6 6200
E-17
E-1.8 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY $562,765 3576.8571 $2,600,000

| ADMINISTRATION BUDGET

DOA Chart [ 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
of Accounts Actual Estimated Proposed Approval

E-2 Personnel Services
E-21  Administrator 7002 $106,570 $102,430, $101,600
E-22 Secretary 7003
E-23 Clerical 7004
E-24  Other (Specify)
E-25 Office & Bookkeeping 7005 $88,888 $93.329 $94,000
E-26 Other Management 7005 $143,843 $146.300  $146,400
E-27

E-3 Board Expenses
E-3.1 Travel 7011
E-32 Mileage 7012
E-33 Other (Specify)
E-3.4 Board Travel, Seminar, Training 7013 $2.081 $1.000 $5,500
E-35 Staff Travel, Seminar, Training 7013 $5,109 $2,382 $10,000
E-3.6

E-4 Contractual Services
E-41 Legal 7021 $7,289 $7,407 $15,000
E-42  Accounting/Auditing 7022 $38,300 $28,500 $34,132
E-43 Other (Specify)
E-44 Engineering 7023 $187,551 $306,318 $611.200
E-4.5 Contract Services/Public Communications 7023 $2,813 $2,000|| $15,000
E-4.6

E-§ Other Administrative Expenses
E-51 Office Supplies 7031 $6.795 $13.714 $15,000
E-5.2 Office equipment, rent & repair 7032 $9,548 $3.681 $35,000
E-53 Education 7033
E-54 Registrations 7034
E-55 Other (Specify)
E-56 Advertising 7035 $2,039 $887 $5,000
E-57 Bank Fees 7035 $26,205 $24,914 $35,000
E-5.8

E-6 TOTAL ADMINISTRATION $627.031 $732,862| 1,022,832




Proposed Budget

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTF FYE  6/30/2022
l OPERATIONS BUDGET
DOA Chart | 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
of Accounts Actual Estimated Proposed Approval
E-7 Personnel Services
E-71  Wages--Operations 7202 $796,049 $867,038 $940,000
E-7.2 Service Contracts 7203
E-7.3 Other (Specify)
E-74 Safety 7204 $19,084 $22,097 $30,000
E-75 7204
E-7.6
E-8 Travel
E-81 Mileage 7211
E-8.2 Other (Specify)
E-83 7212
E-84 7212
E-85
E-9 Operating supplies (List)
E-9.1 Fuel, Lube, Filters 7220 $162,161 $173,554 $225,620
E-22 Tools, Supplies, Tires 7220 $33,223 $55,848)| $69,000
E-93 Bale Wire 7220 $0 $0 $5,000
E-94 7220
E-95
E-10 Program Services (List)
E-101 Recycling - HHW & CCE 7230 $127,823 $206.,900) $169,000
E-10.2 7230
£-10.3 7230
E-104 7230
E-10.5
E-11 Contractual Arrangements (List)
E-11.1  WRIR Transfer Stations 7400 $260,000 $265,000 $270,000
E-11.2 Lease/Equipment Rentals 7400 $24,354 $19,395| $86,000
E-11.3 Bad Debts 7400 $86 $oll $1,000
E-114 Fin Assurance, Reg Fees/Exp 7400 $814 $1.000(| $5,000
E-115
E-12 Other operations (Specify)
E-121 Utillties 7450 $120,201 $114,656, $165,000
E-12.2 Transfer Stations/Scale Houses 7450 $23,006 $8,465(( $35,000
E-12.3 Baler/Heavy Equipment Repairs 7450 $129,874 $142,445| $309.450
E-124 Site Maintenance 7450 $69,494 $85,942 $94,000
E-12.5 see additional details $1.400,000
E-13 TOTAL OPERATIONS $1,766,169 $1,962,338 $3,804,070




Proposed Budget

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DISTF FYE 6/30/2022
| INDIRECT COSTS BUDGET
DOA Chart [ 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
of Accounts Actual Estimated Proposed roval

E-14 Insurance

E-14.1 Liability 7602 $7.776 $9.000 37,000

E-14.2 Buildings and vehicles 7503 $24,893 $29,425 $37.000

E-143 Equipment 7504

E-14.4 Other (Specify)

E-14.5 Surety Bonds 7606 $75 $75 $100

E-146 7508

E-14.7
E-15 Indirect payroll costs:

E-15.1 FICA (Social Security) taxes 7511 $78,620 $83,709 $92,600

E-152 Workers Compensation 7512 $28,787 $6,927| $23,700

E-153 Unemployment Taxes 7513 $9,767 $3,821 $15,000

E-154 Retirement 7514 $160,904 $168,452 $191,500

E-15.5 Health Insurance 75156 $310,949 $330,594 $464,000

E-156 Other (Specify)

E-157 Vacation/Sick Payout 7516 $23 $1,500 $15,000

E-15.8 Health Reimbursement Arrangement 7516 $22,553 $51,123)| $74,550

E-15.9 see additional details $34.812] $42,000
E-17  TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS [S6aa3a7] sr10.438]  soez450 RSN

[ DEBT SERVICE BUDGET
DOAThart [ 2019-2020 | 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
of Accounts Actual Eslimated Approval

D-1
D-1.1
D-1.2
D13

D-2

Debt Service

Principal

Interest

Fees

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE




Proposed Budget

FREMONT COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL DIST FYE  6/30/2022
NAME OF DISTRICT/BOARD
[ GENERAL FUNDS 1
End of Year Beginning Beginning
DOA Chart | 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
c-1 Balances at Beginning of Fiscal Year of Accounts Actual Estimated Proposed Approval
C-11 General Fund Checking 1010 $82,853 $82,85 $100,000
c-12 Savings and Investments 1040 $4,364,854 $4,364,854 $4,533,124
c-13 General Fund CD Balance 1060 $0
C-1.4  All Other Funds 1020
c15 Reserves (From Below) $15,367,116 ﬁm’rﬁl‘s;
C-16 Total Estimated Cash and Investments on Hand $19,814,823] $19,814,823| 4
c-2 General Fund Reductions:
c21 a. Unpaid bills at FYE 2010 $143,648 |
c22 b. Reserves $15,367,116]  $17.216.876|  $19,019.555
c-23 Total Deductions (a+b) $16,510,764| $17.216,876|] $19,019,556
C-24  Estimated Non-Restricted Funds Available $4,304,059 $2.597_,9ﬁ‘ $4,633,124
TUURCIAIT |
of Accounts
[ SINKING & DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 1070 |
2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
c-3 Actual Estimaled Proposed roval
C-3.1  Beginning Balance in Reserve Account (end of previous year) %0 80
c-3.2 Date of Reserve Approval in Minutes:
C-3.3  Amount to be added to the reserve
C-34 Date of Reserve Approval in Minutes:
C-35 SUB-TOTAL $0 $0 $0
C-3.6 Identify the amount and project to be spent
C-37 a.
C-3.8 b.
C-3.9 c.
C-3.10 Date of Reserve Approval in Minutes:
C-311  TOTAL CAPITAL QUTLAY (a+b+c) 30 $0 $0
C-3.12  Balance to be retained 50 0
[ RESERVES [ 1090 | |
2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
c4 Actual Estimated Proposed Approval
C-41  Beginning Balance in Reserve Account (end of previous year) $14,612,996| $15,367,116] §17,216,876
C-4.2 Date of Reserve Approval in Minutes:
C-43 Amount to be added to the reserve | §754,120]  $1,849,760]  $1,802,679)
C-4.4 Date of Reserve Approval in Minutes: with Budget Approval
C45 SUB-TOTAL |_$15367.116] _ $17.216.876] _$19,019,555]
C-46 Identify the amount and project to be spent
C-47 a.
C-48 b.
C-4.9 c.
C-4.10 Date of Reserve Approval in Minutes:
C-411  TOTAL OTHER RESERVE OUTLAY (a+b+c) $0
C-412 Balance to be retained ' §15.367.118 $17,216,876| $19,018,555
| BOND FUNDS | 1060 | |
2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 Pending
C-5 Actual Estimated Proposed roval
C-51  Beginning Balance in Reserve Account (end of previous year) $0)
C-52 Date of Reserve Approval in Minutes:
C-53  Amount to be added to the reserve
C-54 Date of Reserve Approval in Minutes:
Cc-55 SUB-TOTAL
C-56 Identify the amount and project to be spent
C-57 Date of Reserve Approval in Minutes:
C-58 Balance to be retained
c-59  TOTAL TO BE SPENT I 50| $0]




